Public Document Pack

DISTRICT COUNCIL

NOTICE OF MEETING

Meeting: Licensing Hearings

Date and Time: Monday, 19th July, 2021 at 10.00 am
Place: Council Chamber

Enquiries to: committeeservices@hart.gov.uk
Members: Butler, Delaney, Wildsmith

Reserve: Farmer

Joint Chief Executive CIVIC OFFICES, HARLINGTON WAY
FLEET, HAMPSHIRE GU51 4AE

AGENDA

This Agenda and associated appendices are provided in electronic form only and
are published on the Hart District Council Website.

. At the start of the meeting, the Lead Officer will confirm the Fire Evacuation
Procedure.

. The Chairman will announce that this meeting will be recorded and that
anyone remaining at the meeting has provided their consent to any such
recording.

Please download all papers through the Modern.Gov app before the meeting.

Page 1



APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
APPLICATION FOR A NEW PREMISES LICENCE

This report is to enable members to consider and determine an
application for a new premises licence for Crookham Street Social
Club in accordance with the requirements of the Licensing Act 2003.

RECOMMENDATION

It is for members of the Licensing Sub-Committee to determine the application
and consider the steps it considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing
objectives which may include one or more of the following options (s18(4)):

e Grant the licence subject to:

1) The conditions consistent with the operating schedule accompanying the
application modified to such an extent as the authority considers
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and

2) Any mandatory conditions which must under section 19 (relating the sale
of alcohol) and 21 (relating to door supervision) of the Licensing Act 2003
which must be included in the licence if relevant to the proposed
activities.

e Exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to
which the application relates

e Refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor

e Modify the conditions of the licence or add new conditions

¢ Reject the whole or part of the application

The Act allows mediation to take place between local parties, however they are
not under any duty to. Both parties were given the opportunity to mediate but
chose not to engage. The applicant felt that it would make sense for the
proposed activities terminal hour to mirror with those hours already granted on
the Club Premises Certificate.

BACKGROUND

Crookham Street Social Club, established in 1920 currently operates as a
private members club under a Club Premises Certificate (CPC) issued by Hart
District Council Licensing Authority in September 2005. An application for a
premises licence to run alongside the CPC was received 28 May 2021. See
Appendix 1. (The premises plan is attached at Appendix 2)

The proposed premises licence application activities:

Proposed Licensable Activities Proposed Timings
The Sale of Alcohol for consumption Monto Sat 11.00 — 00.00hrs
on the premises only Sunday 12.00 — 00.00hrs

Page 2



24 & 31 Dec. to terminate at 01.00hrs

Provision of Indoor Sporting Events Monto Fri  19.00 — 23.30hrs
Sat & Sun  12.00 — 23.30hrs

Provision of Live Music Friday 19.00 — 00.00hrs
Saturday 11.00 — 00.00hrs

24 & 31 Dec. to terminate at 01.00hrs

Provision of Recorded Music Friday 19.00 — 00.00hrs
Saturday 11.00 — 00.00hrs
24 & 31 Dec. to terminate at 01.00hrs

The current Club Premises Certificate permits the following activities:

Permitted activities Permitted Hours
Supply of Alcohol by a Club Monto Sat 11.00 — 00.00hrs
Sunday 12.00 — 00.00hrs

24 & 31 Dec to terminate at 01.00hrs

Provision of Indoor Sporting Events Fri & Sat 20.00 — 00.00hrs

Provision of Live Music Fri & Sat 20.00 — 00.00rs
24 & 31 Dec to terminate at 01.00hrs
Provision of Recorded Music Fri & Sat 20.00 — 00.00hrs
Conditions specific to live and 1. The finish times (live and recorded
recorded music music and anything similar, supply of
alcohol) on Friday and Saturdays will
be 00.00 hrs.

2. The finish times may, as a
seasonal variation or non-standard
timing be up to 1am (in the cases of
Live Music, recorded music and
anything similar) on each of up to 24
occasions per year on a Friday,
Saturday, Christmas or New Year's
Eve provided:

a. Hart District Council Licensing
Authority is given prior notice of each
occasion

b. A written record is kept of the
same.

3. In the case of the supply of alcohol
condition number 2 (two) applies
except there is no restriction on the
finish time on the morning following
New Year's Eve.

4. During regulated entertainment,
external doors and windows will be
kept closed after 22.00 hrs, in order to
reduce public nuisance.

A noise limiter is in operation at the

Page 3



Club which has been set and sealed
by Hart District Council.

Signs shall be erected at all exits
asking Club users to respect
neighbours and leave the Club and
neighbouring area quietly.

The Council advertised the application on our website and notice boards.
Officers are satisfied the advertising regulations for this application were
complied with. The application is subject to a statutory 28 days consultation
period in which responsible authorities and other parties are able to make
representations which are relevant to the licensing objectives which are:

Public safety,

The protection of children from harm,

The prevention of crime and disorder, and
The prevention of public nuisance

The applicant has proposed steps to promote the licensing objectives within the
operating schedule of the application form, see section 18 of Appendix 1.

REPRESENTATIONS

Representations are relevant if they relate to the likely effect of the granting of
the application in promotion of the licensing objectives. In other words,
representations need to relate to the impact of licensable activities carried on
from a premises on the licensing objectives.

Within the consultation period, one representation opposing the application was
received relating to the Prevention of Public Nuisance objective. The
representation mentions that complaints have been made in relation to the Club:
“Noise complaints date from 2002 (official complaints were also made in 2014
and 2020, both following long periods of unsuccessful direct complaints to
CSSC)”. In the absence of any comments by the Environmental Health
department, a noise complaint was logged against the premises in 2013 and in
2019 a complaint was received and noise monitoring equipment was placed in
the complainant’s property. The Club carried out remedial work to doors,
windows, vent/extractor holes and a new air conditioning system was installed.
The complaint was closed in January 2020. The representation can be found at
Appendix 3. Any matters outside the scope of the licensing objectives are not
considered relevant under the Licensing Act 2003.

No representation were received from any of the Responsible Authorities.
CONSIDERATIONS/DETERMINATION

In carrying out its licensing functions, a licensing authority must have regard to
its “Statement of Licensing Policy” and the guidance issued under section 182 of

the Licensing Act 2003. Relevant extracts of both documents are attached at
Appendices 4 and 5. Members should note this does not preclude them from

Page 4



considering the remainder of the guidance and policy.

When making a decision regarding this application, members must focus on
licensing related matters only. The sub-committee can only determine matters
relating to licensable activities and within the control of the licence holder.
Members are required to take the steps they consider appropriate to promote the
particular licensing objective that has given rise to the specific representations and
avoid straying into undisputed areas. The sub-committee must set out reasons
for their decision within the decision notice.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications arising out of this report.
EQUALITIES AND HUMAN RIGHTS

Equalities/Human rights - Under the Human Rights Act 1998, the sub-committee
needs to consider the balance between the rights of the applicant/licensee and
those making representations when making their decision. The sub-committee
has a duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 when making its
decision to do all it can to prevent crime and disorder in the District.

Legal Implications - The decision made by this sub-committee is subject to
appeal rights to the Magistrates Court. Appeal rights must be included within the
decision notice.

Where a decision is made that is contrary to the statement of Licensing Policy or
is contrary to statutory guidance members must clearly state their grounds for
departing from those documents within the decision notice.

The duties to take steps appropriate to promote the licensing objectives are
referred to throughout this report..

CONCLUSION

The sub-committee must consider the application on its own individual merits
and take into account all relevant matters then determine the applications by
taking the steps it considers appropriate to promote the licensing objectives. The
options available to the committee are detailed within paragraph 2.1 of this
report.

APPENDICES / CONFIDENTIAL APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Crookham Street Social Club — New Premises Licence Application
Form

Appendix 2 — Premises Plan

Appendix 3 — Representation from member of the public

Appendix 4 - Relevant extracts from Hart District Council Statement of Licensing
Policy

Appendix 5 - Relevant extracts from the section 182 guidance

Page 5



BACKGROUND PAPERS:

The Licensing Act 2003

Hart District Council — Statement of Licensing Policy
Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Date of Publication: Tuesday, 6 July 2021

Page 6



Agéifida 3

Page 7



Continued from previous page...

Legal status Chérity or Association
Applicant's position in the
business
: v X X The country where the applicant's
Home country - |United Kingdom headquarters are.
Applicant Bﬁsiness Address . , If the applicant has one, this should be the
' : , applicant's official address - that is an
' BUIlding number.or name Crookham Street Social Club address required of the app[icant by law for
' . 1 receiving communications.
Street : The Street :
District o - Crookham Village
~City or town Fleet
County or administrative area {Hampshire

Postcode | GU51 5SJ
Country v United Kingdom
Agent Details

* First name Philip .

* Family name Gunns

* E-mail

- Main telephone number Include country code. -

Other telephone number

[1 indicate here if you would prefer not to be contacted by telephone
Are you: '
O An agent that is a business or organisation, including a sole trader A sole trader is a business owned by one

v person without any special legal structure,
(& A private individual acting as an agent :

Page 8



Continued from previous page...

Your Address » ' - Address official correspondence should be
: sent to.

* Building number or name

* Street

District

¥ City or town

County or administrative area

* Postcode

* Country . United Kingdom

'PREMISES DETAILS

[/we, as named in section 1, apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises
~ described in section 2 below (the premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the relevant Ilcensmg authority
in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003. :

-Premises Address
Are you able to provide a postal address, OS map reference or description of the premises?
- ® Address (O OS map reference (O Description

Postal Address Of Premises

Building num-ber of name | Crookham Street Social Club
Street The Street
| District _ | . |Crookham Village
City or town | Fleet
- County or administrative area [Hampshire

Postcode ’ : GU51‘ 555
Country : United Kingdém
Further Details

Telephone nurﬁber 01252 615740

Non-domaestic rateable :
value of premises (£) 7800

Page 9



APPLICATION DETAILS

In what capacity are you applying for the premises licence?

[T] Anindividual or individuals
Alimited company / limited liability partnership
A partnership (other than limited liability)

An unincorporated association

Moo

Other (for example a statutory corporation)

<

A recognised club
A charity
The proprietor of an educational establishment

A health service body

A person who is registered under part 2 of the Care Standards Act
2000 {c14) in respect of an independent hospital in Wales

I N

A person who is registered under Chapter 2 of Part 1 of the Health and
Social Care Act 2008 in respect of the carrying on of a regulated
activity (within the meaning of that Part} in an independent hospital in
England ' :

[T The chief officer of police of a police force in England and Wales

[P e e e S

NON INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS

Provide name and registered address of applicant in .fuil. Where appropriate give any registered numbet. In the case of a
partnership or other joint venture (other than a body corporate), give the name and address of each party concerned.

Non individual Applicant’s Name

Name Crookham Street Social Club

Datails

Registered number {where
applicable)

' Description of applicant {for example partnership, company, unincorporated association etc)

Social Club

Page 10



Page 11



Continued from previous page...

If 5,000 or more people are
expected to attend the

premises at any one time,

state the number expected to
attend '

Section 6 of 21

PROVISION OF PLAYS

See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing plays?
O Yes @® No

Section 7 of 21

PROVISION OF FILMS

See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing films?
C Yes (@ No

Section 8 of 21

PROVISION OF INDOOR SPORTING EVENTS

See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing indoor sporting events?

@® Yes C No
Standard Days And Timings

MIONDRY Give timings in 24 hour clock.
Start End (e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
of the week when you intend the premises
Start End to be used for the activity.
TUESDAY
Start [19:00 End
s [ ] md [
WEDNESDAY
Start |19:00 End |23:30
Start End l::l
THURSDAY
Start [19:00 End |23:30
Start End
FRIDAY
start End
sart | ] Page 12



Continued from previous page...

SATURDAY

Start [12:00 End |23:30

Start End l:‘

SUNDAY

Start |12:00 End (23:30

Start _ End ]

State type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not
exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.

Darts, Snooker, Pool & Poker, No music.

State any seasonal variations for indoor sporting events

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

~

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for indoor sporting events at different times from those listed in the
column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.
|

\
Section 9 of 21

PROVISION OF BOXING OR WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENTS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing boxing or wrestling entertainments?

 Yes & No
Section 10 of 21
PROVISION OF LIVE MUSIC

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing live music?
(® Yes ' No
Standard Days And Timings

Page 13




Continued from previous page..,

MONDAY ‘ Give timings in 24 hour clock.
Start End | (e.g.16:00) and only give details for the days
. of the week when you intend the premises
Start ] 7 End to be used for the activity.
TUESDAY
Start : | End
Start ] _ End
WEDNESDAY - ' : : :
| stat | End
Start _ End
THURSDAY
Start o End
Start ' " End
FRIDAY _
Start {19:00 o _ End |00:00
Start | i End
SATURDAY |
Start |11:00 - End j00:00
Start | 7 End
SUNDAY
| Start | End
Start |- . | . End
Will the performance of live music take place indoors or outdoors or both? ~ Where taking place in a building or other
. - structure tick as appropriate. Indoors may
® Indoors (> OQutdoors {5 Both include a tent.

State type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not
exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.

We have live Music once a month & the occasional party may have live music.

State any seasonal variations for the performance of live music

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity wilt occur on additional days during the summer months.

Page 14




Continued from previous page...

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the performance of live music at different times from those listed

in the column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Christmas Eve, New Years Eve to 1.00am

Section 11 of 21

PROVISION OF RECORDED MUSIC

See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing recorded music?

(® Yes C No
Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY

Start

st [ ]
TUESDAY

Start

Start -
WEDNESDAY

Start

Start
THURSDAY

Start

Start
FRIDAY

Start {19:00

Start
SATURDAY

Start |11:00

Start

|

End

End

End

End

End

End

End

End

End |00:00

End

iRligiinil

End |00:00

End

Give timings in 24 hour clock.

(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
of the week when you intend the premises
to be used for the activity.

Page 15



Continued from previous page...

SUNDAY
Start End
Start End |
Will the playing of recorded music take place indoors or outdoors or both? Where taking place in a building or other
structure tick as appropriate. Indoors may
(@ Indoors (" Outdoors (' Both include a tent.

State type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not
exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.

We have Karaoke once a month, the occasional party with a Disco plus some kids parties during the day at the weekend
isometimes with a DJ. Music will be amplified.

State any seasonal variations for playing recorded music

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the playing of recorded music at different times from those listed
in the column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Christmas Eve, New Years Eve to 1.00am

Section 12 of 21
PROVISION OF PERFORMANCES OF DANCE

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing performances of dance?

" Yes (& No
Section 13 of 21

PROVISION OF ANYTHING OF A SIMILAR DESCRIPTION TO LIVE MUSIC, RECORDED MUSIC OR PERFORMANCES OF
DANCE

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing anything similar to live music, recorded music or
performances of dance?

C Yes @ No
Section 14 of 21
LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT
Will you be providing late night refreshment? Page 16




Continued from previous page...

SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Will you be selling or supplying alcohol?

-(® Yes _ {O No
Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY : _ Give timings in 24 hour clock. '
Start |11.00 End [00:00° (e.9., 16:00) and only give details for the days
: _of the week when you intend the premises
Start | ] End to be used for the activity.
TUESDAY -
‘Start {11:00 ' End [00:00
Start ' Lo End
WEDNESDAY | _
stat [11:00 End [00:00
Start . End
THURSDAY
Start {11:00 | End [00:00
Start | ‘ End
FRIDAY
Start End ]00:00
Start K End
- SATURDAY .
Start {11:00 i End |00:00
Start ‘ | End
SUNDAY ,
Start {1200 | End [00:00 7
| Start | . End _
Will the sale of alcohol be for consumption; If the sale of aicohol is for consumption on
‘ o the premises select on, if the saie of alcohol
® Onthe premises {0 Offthe premises ({3 Both is for consumption away from the premises

select off, If the sale of alcohol is for
consumption on the premises and away
from the premises select both.

State any seasonal variations

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Page 17




Continued from previous page...

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the supply of alcohol at different times from those listed in the
column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Christmas Eve, New Years Eve to 1.00am.

State the name and details of the mdmdual whom you wish to speafy on the
licence as premises supervisor .

Name
First name ' Anthony
Family name - [Martin

Enter the contact's address

Building number or name

Street

District

City or town

- County or administrative area

Postcode

Country " {United Kingdom
Personal Licence number _ :
(if known) B

ISsuing licensing authority
(if known)

Hart District Council

PROPOSED DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR CONSENT

How will the consent form of the proposed designated premises supervisor
be supplied to the authority? '

> Electronically, by the proposed designated premises supervisor

@® Asan attachment to this application

Page 18



Continued from previous page...

Reference number for consent If the consent form is already submitted, ask
form {if known) : e S the proposed designated premises
' supetrvisor for its 'system reference’ or 'your
reference'. '

ADULT ENTERTAINMENT

Highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, or other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use of the
premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children

Give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to the use of the premises which may give
rise to concern in respect of children, regardless of whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for example
{but not exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age groups etc gambling machines etc.

Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY _ : Give timings in 24 hour clock.
Start {08:00 ) End. |00:00 | (e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
' 7 of the week when you intend the premises
Start o End | to be used for the activity.
TUESDAY
Start (08:00 | End [00:00
Start | _ End
WEDNESDAY
Start |08:00 1 End j00:00
Start ~ End
. THURSDAY
Start {08:00 End |00:00
Start _ End
FRIDAY
Start {08:00 End 00:00
Start | End
SATURDAY
Start [08:00 End |00:00
Start " End

Page 19



Continued from previous page...

SUNDAY

Start [1200 | ‘End [00:00

Start End

State any seasonal variations

For example (but not exclusively) Where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months,

Non standard timings, Where you intend to use the premises to be open te the members and guests at different times from
those listed in the column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusiveiy}, where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve,

Christmas Eve, New Years Eve to 1.00am

I:ICE"NSING OBJECTIVES

Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:
a) General - all four licensing objectives (b,c,d,e)

Llst here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together

All staff are fully trained to perform their role involving licensable activities. Staffare provided with initial training with a
refresher course every 6 months, staff training includes but not limited to.

The contents of the premises license to include times of opening, authorised activities and the conditions which licensable
activities must take place, to comply with age verification and the strict no drugs policy.

Knowledge of the Licensing Act 2003 regardlng the sale of alcohol, general and under age offences and licensing
objectives.

[The operating procedure for refusing the sale of alcohol to any person that is drunk, or is or appears to be under age.
Awareness of drugs & intoxication, proxy sales, noise monitoring and how to deal with intoxicated customers,

Staff training records to be kept on the_prer__ni'ses for a minimum of 12 months.

h) The prevention of crime and disorder

A total of 11 CCTV cameras will be in operation at the premises, 5 covering the exterior front side & rear of the building & 7
covering the interior, exits,hall & bar. The CCTV system will be controlled and monitored by the Premises Supervisor &
serviced every 6 months.

An incident and refusals book will be kept and maintained on the premises at all tirmes. The book shall detail in brief but not

restricted to incidents of removal from the premises for drug misuse, under age drinking and the refusal to serve alcohol
including the reason for such action, any incidents must be fimed, dated & signed by the author and counter signed by the
Premises Supervisor weekly. The club has a strict no drugs policy & notices signaling such.

¢) Public safety

All staff & club committee members shall receive annual alth & O%g’fy training in order that they are aware of protocols in
the event of emergency. We have a trained First Aider an e First Aid kit.




Continued from previous page...
Fire alarm serviced and regularly tested, clearly marked fire exits & extmguushers

d) The preventicn of public nuisance

To control noise nuisance we have a noise limiter which has been set & sealed by Hart District Council, we have also had
fitted non opening windows with scund deadening glass, sealed all the old air vents, fitted aluminum sealed entrance
doors, replaced double swing doors inside the club with single sealed doors, installed air conditioning to eliminate the need
to open windows & doors on hot days,

Live & recorded music will only take place inside the building.

Bar staff will check the smoking area & car park for any excessive noise during Regulated Entertainment.

Deliveries, waste collection & cleaning will only take place during daytime hours. :

)The protection of chlldren from harm

Children under 18 shali not be permitted unless they are accompanied by a responsible adult.
A strict Challenge 25 policy shall be in operation,
'No children permitted at the bar' sighage shall be erected.
Bar staff will monitor behavior around the club to identify if anyone under the age of 18 are drinking other peoples drlnks or
are having drinks bought for them by an adult.
- |Staff will circulate areas that are out of view of the bar.
All bar staff employed by the club are adults and fully trained to confidently challenge any person that looks under 25, and
those found to be under age will be reported as such to the responsible person on duty.
No adult entertainment will be allowed on the premises.

NOTES ON DEMONSTRATING ENTITLEMENT TO WORK IN THE UK

Page 21



Continued from previous page...

Entitlement to work/immigration status for individual appliéants and applications from partnerships which are not
limited liability partnerships:

A licence may not be held by an individual or an individual in a partnership who is resident in the UK who:

does not have the right to live and work in the UK; or
- is subject to a condition preventing him or her from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable
activity.

Any premises licence issued in respect ofan appllcatlon made on or after 6 April 2017 will become invalid if the holder
ceases to be entitled to work in the UK,

Applicants must demonstrate that they have an entitlement to work in the UK and are not subject to a condition preventing

them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity. They do this in one of two ways: 1) by providing
with this application copies or scanned copies of the documents listed below (which do not need to be certified}, or 2) by

providing their 'share code’ to enable the licensing authority to carry out a check using the Home Office online right to work

checking service (see below),
Documents which demonstrate entitlement to work in the UK

An expired or current passport showing-the holdet,or.a-person-naméd-in-the passport as the child of the
holder, is A British citizen or a citizen of the UK and Colonies having the right of abode in the UK [please see
note below about which sections of the passport to copy].

An expired or current passport or national identity card showing the holder, ora person named in the passport
as the child of the holder, is a national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland. '

A Registration Certificate or document certifying permanent residence issued by the Home Office to a national

of a European Economic Area country or Switzeiland. —
A Permanent Residence Card Issued by the Home Office to the family member ofa national of a European
Economic Area country or SWltzerIand

A current Biometric lmmigratlon Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the
holder indicating that the person named is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK, or has no time limit on their
stay in the UK.

A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is exempt from immigration control, is allowed to stay
indefinitely in the UK, has the right of abode in the UK, or has no time limit on their stay in the UK,

A current Immigration Status Document issued by the Home Office to the holder with an endorsement

“indicating that the named person is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK or has no time limit on their stay in

the UK, when produced in combination with an official document giving the person'’s permanent National
Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

A birth or adoption certificate issued in the UK, when produced in combination with an official document
giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency
or a previous emplover.

A birth or adoption certificate issued in the Channel Islands, the Isie of Man or Ireland when produced in

- combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their -

name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

A certificate of registration or naturalisation as a British citizen, when produced in combination with an
official document giving the person’s permanent National insurance number and their name issued by a
Government agency or a previous employer.

Page 22




Continued from previous page...

. A cutrent passport endorsed ta show that the holder is allowed to stay in the UK and is currehtly allowed to
work and is not subject to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a
licensable activity, -

® A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residénce Permit) issued by the Home Office ta the

holder which indicates that the named person can currently stay in the UK and is allowed to work relation to
the carrying on of a licensable activity.

. A current Residence Card issued by the Home Office to a person who is not a national of a European Economic
Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a natlonal or who has derivative rights or
residence,

. A current Immigration Status Document containing a photograph issued by the Home Office to the holder

with an endorsement indicating that the named person may stay in the UK, and is alfowed to work and is not
subject to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity
when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance
humber and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer,

. A Certificate of Application, less than 6 months old, issued by the Home Office under regulation 18(3) or 20(2)
of the Immigration (European Economic Area) Regulations 2016, to a person who is not a national of a
- European Economic Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has
derivative rights of residence.

. Reasonable evidence that the person has an outstanding application to vary their permission to be in the UK
_ with the Home Office such as the Home Office acknowledgement letter or proof of postage evidence, or
reasonable evidence that the person has an appeal or administrative review pending on an immigration
decision, such as an appeal or administrative review reference number,

s - Reasonable evidence that a person who is not a national of a European Economic Area state or Switzerland but
who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights of residence in exercising treaty rights in
the UK includiing:-

evidence of the applicant's own identity — such as a passport,

evidence of their relationship with the European Economic Area family member - e.g. a marriage
certificate, civil partnership certificate or birth certificate, and

. evidence that the European Economic Area national has a right of permanent remdence in the UK or is one
of the following if they have been in the UK for more than 3 months:
i) working e.g. employment contract, wage slips, letter from the employer,
(i) - self-employed e.g. contracts, invoices, or audited accounts with a bank,

{iii) studying e.g. letter from the school, college or university and evidence of sufficient funds; or
{iv) self-sufficient e.g. bank statements.

Family members of European Economic Area nationals who are studying or financially independent must also provide
evidence that the European Economic Area national and any family members hold comprehensive sickness i insurance in the
UK. This can include a private medical insurance policy, an EHIC card or an 51, 52 or 53 form. -

Original documeénts must not ba sent to licensing authorities. If the document copted is a passport,-a copy of the
following pages should be provided:- ‘

(i) any page containing the holder’s personal details including nationality;

(i} any page containing the holder’s photograph; -

(i) any page containing the helder’s signature;

(iv) any page containing the date of expiry; and

{v) any page contammg information indicating the holder has permission to enter or remain in the UK and is permitted to
work.

Page 23



Continued from previous page...

If the document is not a passport, a copy of the whole document should be provided.

Your right to work will be checked as part of your licensing application and this could involve us checking your immigration
status with the Home Office. We may otherwise share information with the Home Office. Your licence application will not be
determined until you have complied with this guidance.

Home Office online right to work checking service

As an alternative to providing a copy of the documents listed above, applicants may demonstrate their right to work by
allowing the licensing authority to carry out a check with the Home Office online right to work checking service.

To demanstrate their right to work via the Home Office online right to work checking service, applicants should include in
this application their 9-digit share code (provided to them upon accessing the service at https://www.gov.uk/prove-right-
to-work) which, along with the applicant's date of birth (provided within this application), will allow the licensing authority
to carry out the check.

In order to establish the applicant's right to work, the check will need to indicate that the applicant is allowed to work in the
United Kingdom and is not subject to a condition preventing them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a
licensable activity.

An online check will not be possible in all circumstances because not all applicants will have an immigraticon status that can
be checked online. The Home Office online right to work checking service sets out what information and/or documentation
applicants will need in order to access the service. Applicants who are unable to obtain a share code from the service
should submit copy documents as set out above.

Section 20 of 21

NOTES ON REGULATED ENTERTAINMENT

Page 24



Continued from previous page...

In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:

Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience
does not exceed 500.

Films; no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community premises’ between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the
screening from a person who is responsible for the premises; and {b) ensures that each such screening abides

- by age classification ratings.

Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances hetween 08,00 and 23.00 on any day, provided
that the audience does not exceed 1000.

Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment: no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or display of Greco-Roman
wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not
exceed 1000, Combined fighting sports - defined as a contest, exhibition or display which combines boxing or
wrestling with one or more martial arts - are licensable as a boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an

“indoor sporting event.

Live music: no licence permission is required for;
a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, on any premises.

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell
alcohol for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a workplace that is not
licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23,00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,
community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and {b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises
of (i) a local authority, or {ii) a school, or (jii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500,
and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local
authority concerned, or (i) the school or {iii) the health care provider for the hospltal

Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:

any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell alcohol
for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,
community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
aleohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.

any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises of (i} a
local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b)
the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i} the local authority

- concerned, or (i) the school proprietor or {iii} the health care provider for the hospital.

Page 25



Continued from previous page...

J Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08,00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the
audience does not exceed 500. However, a performance which amounts to adult entertainment remains
licensable.

e Craoss activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, with no limit on

audience size for:

0 any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority where the entertainment is provided
by or on behalf of the local authority;

0 _any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health care provider where the
entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the health care provider;

‘ 0 any entertainment taking blace on the premises of the school where the entertainment is provided by or
on behalf of the school proprietor; and

o - anyentertainment (excluding fitms and a boxing or wrestling entertainment) taking place at a travelling
circus, provided that (a) it takes place within a moveable structure that accommodates the audience, and
(b} that the travelling circus has not been located on the same site for more than 28 consecutive days.

PAYMENT DETAILS

This fee must be paid to the authority. If you complete the application online, you must pay it by debit or credit card.

Premises Licence Fees are determined by the non&nbsp;domestic rateable&nbsp;value of the premises,

To find out a premises non domestic rateable value go to the Valuation Office Agency site at http://www.voa.gov. uk/
business_rates/index.htm

Band A - No RVto £4300 £100.00

Band B - £4307 to £33000 £190.00

Band C - £33001 to £8700 £315.00

Band D - £87001 to £12500 £450.00*

Band E - £125001 and over £635.00* _

*If the premises rateable value is in Bands D or E and the premises is primarily used for the consumption of alcohol on the
‘premises then your are required to pay a higher fee

Band D - £87001 to £12500 £900.00

Band E - £125001 and over £1,905.00

There is an exemption from the payment of fees in relation to the provision of regulated entertainment at church halls,

. chapel halls or premises of a similar nature, village halls, parish or community halls, or other premises of a similar nature. The
costs associated with these licences will be met by central Government. If, however, the licence also authorises the-use of
the premises for the supply of alcohol or the provision of late night refreshment, a fee will be required.

Schools and sixth form colleges are exempt from the fees associated with the authorisation of regulated entertainment
where the entertainment is provided by and at the school or college and for the purposes of the school or college.

If you operate a large event you are subject to ADDITIONAL fees based upon the number in attendance at any one time
Capacity 5000-9999 £1,000.00

Capacity 10000 -14999 £2,000.00

Capacity 15000-19999 £4,000.00

Capacity 20000-29999 £8,000.00

Capacity 30000-39000 £16,000,00

Capacity 40000-49999 £24,000.00

Capacity 50000-59999 £32,000.00

Capacity 60000-69999 £40,000.00

Capacity 70000-79999 £48,000.00

Capacity 80000-89999 £56,000.00

Capacity 90000 and over £64,0.(}0.00

* Fae amount (£) 19000
ATTACHMENTS

AUTHORITY POSTAL ADDRESS




Zontinued from previous page...

Address

Building number or name

Street

District

City or town

County or administrative area —|

Postcode

Country United Kingdom

DECLARATION

[Applicable to individual applicants only, including those in a partnership which is not a limited liability partnership] |
understand | am not entitled to be issued with a licence if | do not have the entitlement to live and work in the UK (or if |
am subject to a condition preventing me from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity) and that my
licence will become invalid if | cease to be entitled to live and work in the UK (please read guidance note 15).

The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in the UK (and is not subject to conditions preventing him or
* her from doing work relating to a licensable activity) and | have seen a copy of his or her proof of entitlement to work, if
appropriate (please see note 15).

I/we understand it is an offence, liable on conviction to a fine up to level 5 on the standard scale, under section 158 of the
licensing act 2003, to make a false statement in or in connection with this application.

[ understand that | must now advertise my application in a locally circulating newspaper (or if there is none, in a local
* newsletter, circular or similar document) circulating in the vicinity of the premises, at least once during the 10 working
days after the application is given to the relevant licensing authority.

| understand that | must display a public notice outside the premises for 28 consecutive days, on pale blue A4 (or larger),
printed legibly in black ink or typed in black, in a size equal (or larger) to 16 font, prominently at or on the premises to
which the application relates. Where the premises covers an area of more than 50 metre squared, the same notice must
be placed every 50 metres along the external perimeter of the premises.

[]  Ticking this box indicates you have read and understood the above declaration

This section should be completed by the applicant, unless you answered "Yes" to the question "Are you an agent acting on
behalf of the applicant?”

* Full name

* Capacity

Date (dd/mm/yyyy) |

( Add another sighatory

Once you're finished you need to do the following:

1. Save this form to your computer by clicking file/save as...

2. Go back to https://www.gov.uk/apply-for-a-licence/premises-licence/hart/apply-1 to upload this file and continue with
your application.

Don't forget to make sure you have all your supporting documentation to hand.

Page 27



Continued from previous page...

IT IS AN OFFENCE LIABLE TO SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE
LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION

IT1S AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY
KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF
THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECTTO
CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION,
ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN
OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE KNOCWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE EMPLOYEE

1S DISQUALIFIED

Page 28



APPENDIX 2

NQTE...

FED.  .FIRE EXIT OoOR..

FE. . FIRE_EXTINGUISHER..

|
< i
|
L 1
I |
LTz k) £ w
, 4 ,pmwww@
f ™ RS S0
i B, i o T Nnﬂdﬂ%ﬁr/@
snooxe@ Room. A ] ,\\\\ 1/\\ W/W\'/%vw,\\ ]
i e Y/ i
; Y %ﬁﬂw y i
BLOCK _PLANI
‘Mr\\brw-.m 111250,
it
puneTion 5
N T

PLAN.

RECEIVED
A4 N 2005

CcRoOOKHAM  STREET.

SITE PLAKL .
- SCALE [:500.

CEXISTIMG PLAK OF

TCROOKHAM 'STREET  SOCIAL CLUB.

TCROOKHAM STREET, CROOKHAM VILLAGE, HANITS.
_SCAKEI1:7100..

oslaozs]unried

o

W

29

Page

oA

o
i1

—y

LKL L P

pr -5
i
I“

Ve

i

y g

11 R

R R



APPENDIX 3

Representation regarding 21/00230/LAPRE | Premises Licence | Crookham Street Social
Club

Mon 21/06/2021 21:26

To: License Hart <licence@hart.gov.uk>

[I]J 1 attachments (18 KB)

Representation.docx;

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Hart District Council. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognise the sender and know the content is safe.

Dear Angela, Hart Licensing Team

Please see the attached representation regarding licence application 21/00230/LAPRE for Crookham
Street Social Club.

Please confirm receipt of this representation, and any further details required.
Best regards

Crookham Village

Hampshire

cus1jii]

Page 30



Dear Licensing Officer

I am making a representation with regard to Licence Application 21/00230/LAPRE concerning
Crookham Street Social Club.

We support any venture which enhances the local community of Crookham Village. We have been
members of the Social Club in the past, and have been helping them to tackle disturbances in their
car park by placing the cones provided by the police across the entrance to the car park. We did this
every night, on their behalf, during the whole of the third lockdown, and are still doing so on
evenings when the Social Club doesn’t operate. But for the reasons given below, we object to the
provision of Licence Application 21/00230/LAPRE.

e Hart's Licensing Policy states that while there is light touch regulation of music up to
11pm, it must not ‘cause nuisance and disturbance to local residents’ and ‘licensed premises
in rural locations will operate earlier terminal hours to reflect the tranquillity and lifestyle
within the village area, and to protect local residents living close to the premises.” The Policy
also notes that proximity of local residents to the premises, hours of operation, risk of noise
leakage, noise from customers using outside space and leaving the car park, and history of
complaints about the premises must be considered in granting licenses.

Given the quiet village location, close proximity to residents, and history of complaints,
licensing Crookham Street Social Club to play music beyond 11pm is not consistent with
Hart's Licensing Policy:

Noise complaints date from 2002 (official complaints were also made in 2014, and 2020,
both following long periods of unsuccessful direct complaints to CSSC).

In 2020, calibrated noise monitoring equipment provided by the council recorded
unacceptable noise levels: it was possible to make out specific songs, lyrics and distinct
styles of music late into the evenings, through double-glazed windows. A noise limiter was
already installed in CSSC and calibrated prior to the period when the recording took place.

Subsequent noise mitigation measures carried out (some doors and windows replaced,
new air conditioning system, fan systems plugged), have not insulated the noise levels by
any significant amount. Perhaps this is because the area where live music is played has
windows on both sides, and even with special glass, these are poor sound insulators.

The granting of this license is inconsistent with Hart's Licensing Policy, in relation to prevention of
public nuisance.

Best regards

Page 31



APPENDIX 4

Relevant extracts from Hart District Council Statement of Licensing Policy

2.1 When administering licensing matters the council as the Licensing Authority will
have regard to and promote the four Licensing Objectives set out in section 4 of Part
2 of the Licensing Act 2003.

The four licensing objectives are:

e Prevention of Crime and Disorder
e Public Safety
e Prevention of Public Nuisance, and

e Protection of Children from Harm

The Council gives equal weight to each of these objectives.

3.1 Hart District Council is the Licensing Authority pursuant to the Licensing Act 2003
(the Act) and is responsible for considering a range of licence applications and
amendments to licences for a number of activities detailed below. The purpose of
licensing is to regulate the carrying on of licensable activities on licensed premises,
at qualifying clubs and under temporary event notices. The activities as defined by
the Act include:
- Sale and/or supply of alcohol
- The provision of regulated entertainment which includes:

e the performance of a play

e an exhibition of a film

e an indoor sporting event (subject to some exemptions)

e boxing or wrestling entertainment

e a performance of live music (subject to some exemptions)

e playing of recorded music (subject to some exemptions)

e provision of late night refreshment

Some exemptions exist for audiences of fewer than 500 if provided between the
hours of 8am and 11pm.

3.3 The Policy will apply across a range of applications which include the following:
i) New Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates

i) Variations to Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates

ii) Provisional Statements for proposed premises yet to be built

iv) Transfer of Premises Licences

v) Disapplication of mandatory condition in respect of alcohol sales at village Halls
and community premises

vi) Variations of licences to change the Designated Premises Supervisor

vii) Reviews of Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates

viii) Personal Licences

ix) Temporary Events Notices

Page 32



3.4 Hart District Council has a wide range of premises across the District to which
the policy licences and activities apply. These include:

Licensed private Wholesalers/Internet Supermarkets
members clubs/social sales of alcohol

clubs

Cafes Licensed open spaces  Off Licences
Cinemas/Theatre/Conc  Public Houses Late night food traders
ert Hall

Hotels and guest Restaurants Night clubs

houses

Community Sports clubs with Bars Mobile food vendors

premises/village halls

4.2 1t is fact that well managed licensed premises and licensable activities contribute
to the District’s activity, vitality, vibrancy and economy by attracting local residents
and visitors to use the premises and facilities on offer, and provide sustainable
employment for people who work at those premises. The licensed premises and
licensable activities regulated by the Licensing Act 2003 will play a significant part in
realising that vision.

5 POLICY AIMS

5.1 This Policy aims to promote the Licensing Authority’s vision for the District as a
whole and its hopes:

‘to encourage in our District a wide choice of high quality and responsibly
managed entertainment and cultural venues which provide a diverse range of
licensed activities, community interaction and a variety of places for retail and
refreshment, ensuring at all times the safety and amenity of residential
communities, business communities and the visiting public’

5.5 The aim of this Policy is to clearly set out how Hart District Council in its role as
the Licensing Authority will promote the four licensing objectives when dealing with
licensing matters. The four licensing objectives are:

e Prevention of Crime and Disorder
e Public Safety
e Prevention of Public Nuisance

e Protection of Children from Harm

5.6 The Licensing Authority will regulate licensable activities at licensed and
unlicensed premises in the combined interests of the public and licensed trades, and
recognises that these activities contribute to the quality of lives of the districts
residents, businesses and visitors and help support the local economy.

Page 33



5.7 To achieve this aim the council is committed to partnership working with the
responsible authorities, local businesses, licensing trade, residents, those involved in
the protection of children and other interested parties towards the promotion of the
objectives. The council will ensure that it takes into account the views of these
stakeholders and ensure proper integration of local crime prevention, planning,
transport, employment, tourism and cultural strategies.

5.8 The Licensing Authority aims to balance the protection of the amenity of the local
population with the expectations and ability of local businesses to operate in an
environment that is attractive and sustainable for their business. The Policy aims to
minimise the impacts of licensable activities on residents, visitors, stakeholders and
the environment.

5.9 This Policy aims to guide applicants, residents and other persons on the general
approach that the council will take to licensing applications and other related issues.
Although each application will be considered individually on its own merits, this
Policy indicates the wider considerations that will be taken into account when
determining applications. However, it is not the Council’s intention in adopting this
Policy to override the right of any person to make an application and have it
considered on its merit.

5.10 The Council will work with other local authorities, particularly those with whom
boundaries are shared, to ensure a consistent approach is taken to licensing issues
whilst respecting the differing needs of the individual communities.

6 LICENSING AUTHORITY GENERAL POLICY CONSIDERATIONS

6.1 The Licensing Authority encourages the development of premises which are not
alcohol-led and which are aimed at different sectors of the population, including age
and gender. Premises that promote the arts, a food offer, or other cultural activities
are particularly encouraged.

6.2 Where premises such as pubs are alcohol-based, they are encouraged to
consider diversifying their provisions so as to encourage a mixed customer-base and
wider attractions, including community uses, soft refreshments, snacks and live
entertainment

Diversification is important in the promotion of the licensing objectives as well as
ensuring a sustainable economic future for premises

Advice

6.4 Pre application advice is available from licensing officers upon request and
where appropriate. The Licensing Authority expects that applicants will have in
advance researched and understood the relevant Law in relation to their application
and their particular business plans, as well as this Policy. It is not for licensing
officers to determine the business needs and capabilities of an applicant but advice
can be offered in relation to the licensing objectives. In addition guidance notes are
available on the licensing pages of Council’'s website at
http://www.hart.gov.uk/alcohol-entertainment#alcohol

Page 34


http://www.hart.gov.uk/alcohol-entertainment#alcohol

6.5 Licensing officers will also provide advice to other parties on the licensing
process where needed in relation to objecting to or supporting applications that may
affect them.

Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) at alcohol licensed premises

6.11 Whilst this role has a limited definition under the Licensing Act 2003, it is
expected that this person nominated on a licence will have overall responsibility for
the day to day management and control of the licensed premises and in particular be
responsible for the safe receipt, storage and sale of alcohol.

6.12 The Licensing Authority would expect the DPS to be onsite at the licensed
premises for the majority of time when alcohol is being sold subject to working hours’
legislation and absence for sickness and holidays. The Licensing Authority expects
the DPS to provide training to staff in relation to alcohol sales and to authorise the
employees the DPS considers competent to sell alcohol on their behalf in writing.

6.13 The Licensing Authority expects that a DPS should have responsibility for only
one licensed premises at a time to ensure good management of the premises and
the licensable activities. Where the same person is a nominated DPS on more than
one premises licence and representations are made, the Licensing Authority will
wish to satisfy itself that the premises in question can properly be managed by that
person whilst responsibly promoting the licensing objectives.

Live Music

6.14 It is acknowledged that the implementation of the Live Music Act in 2012 has
resulted in a lighter touch regulation of live music up to 11pm on alcohol licensed
premises, and this is seen as a positive approach for premises wishing to provide
live music. However, the Licensing Authority does not see this as an opportunity for
licensees to provide live music events that cause nuisance and disturbance to local
residents or businesses.

6.15 The Licensing Authority expects that where unregulated live music is proposed
at licensed premises, all due care and consideration is taken to prevent disturbance.
The council will consider using its powers under the Environmental Protection Act
1990 to prevent and control public nuisance caused by poorly managed live music at
licensed premises.

Deregulated Entertainment

6.16 Where the further deregulation of schedule 1 of the Licensing Act has reduced
the regulatory controls on some regulated entertainment activities, the Licensing
Authority will expect licensees to ensure that no nuisance or disturbance is caused to
local residents and businesses when providing the deregulated activities. Where
necessary the Licensing Authority will consider using alternative powers as per para
6.14.

Need for licensed premises and Cumulative Impact

6.21 ‘Need’ concerns the commercial demand for particular licensed premises such
as a pub, club or hotel. This is a ‘market forces’ matter and is not of concern to the
Licensing Authority. ‘Cumulative Impact’ means the potential impact on the
promotion of the licensing objectives by a significant or excessive number of licensed

Page 35



premises concentrated in one locality. This is a matter for consideration by the
Licensing Authority.

7 RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES AND OTHER PERSONS

7.1 Responsible authorities are public bodies that are statutory consultees that must
be notified of applications by the applicant. The full list and contact details can be
found at Appendix A and are contained on the Hart District Council web-site at:
http://www.hart.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2_Businesses/Licensing_and_permits/Alcoh
ol_and_entertainment/Responsible%20authorities%20March%202016.pdf

7.2 When dealing with applications for licences and reviews of premises licenses,
the Licensing Authority is obliged to consider representations from two categories of
persons, referred to as ‘Responsible Authorities’ and ‘Other Persons’. This allows for
a broad range of persons including ward councillors to comment both for and against
applications for premises licences and club premises certificates and for reviews.

7.3 The Licensing Authority may only consider representations that are relevant, in
that they relate to the promotion of the licensing objectives, or that they raise issues
in relation to this Statement of Licensing Policy or Home Office Guidance.

7.4 The Licensing Authority will take care to ensure that concerns raised by
Responsible Authorities in relation to their own legislative functions are not taken into
account if they are not relevant to the application for a premises licence under the
Act, or the promotion of the licensing objectives. It would expect those authorities to
use their powers and duties within their statutory roles to control such matters. Any
representation made by a Responsible Authority that relates to the promotion of the
licensing objectives will be accepted.

7.5 The Licensing Authority must give the appropriate amount of weight to
representations made by the Police on crime and disorder matters. The Police are
the Licensing Authority’s main source of advice on matters relating to the promotion
of the crime and disorder licensing objective. The Licensing Authority will accept
representations made by the Police unless the authority has evidence that to do so
would not be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.

7.6 Where an ‘Other Person or Persons’ request to be represented when seeking to
make a representation, the Licensing Authority will require written evidence from the
person/s being represented that they have authorised a third party to speak or write
on their behalf.

7.7 The Licensing Authority will examine closely all representations to ensure that
they are not frivolous, repetitive or vexatious. Matters that this authority will consider
are likely to include:

i) who is making the representation, and whether there is a history of making
representations that are not relevant or which have been previously considered
vexatious of frivolous

i) whether the representation raises a ‘relevant’ issue

iii) whether the representation raises issues specifically to do with the premises
and/or the licensable activities that are the subject of the application.

Page 36


http://www.hart.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2_Businesses/Licensing_and_permits/Alcohol_and_entertainment/Responsible%20authorities%20March%202016.pdf
http://www.hart.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2_Businesses/Licensing_and_permits/Alcohol_and_entertainment/Responsible%20authorities%20March%202016.pdf

7.8 The above considerations are not exhaustive, and the Licensing Authority will
have regard to anything a person making a representation, or persons representing
them, say about his or her status to make representations. Nothing in this Policy
should be taken to undermine the right of any person to make a representation on an
application or to seek a review of a licence where provision to do so exists.

9 LICENSING AUTHORITY POLICY APPROACH TO LICENSING IN RURAL
AREAS AND VILLAGE CENTRES

9.1 Hart District Council includes rural and semi-rural villages with their individual
characteristics and qualities commonly found in rural and village life.

9.2 The Licensing Authority expects that, in general licensed premises in rural
locations will operate earlier terminal hours to reflect the tranquillity and lifestyle
within the village area, and to protect local residents living close to the premises. It is
acknowledged that on occasions such premises will wish to extend their hours to
support community and other events attended by the village residents.

9.3 Applicants will be expected to offer a range of steps within their operating
schedule to protect the amenity of the residents where occasional later closing hours
are utilised.

Alternatively, licensees can make use of Temporary Event Notices to temporarily
extend their hours of operation and range of licensable activities on offer.

11 HUMAN RIGHTS AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES

11.1 The Human Rights Act 1998 makes it unlawful for a local authority to act in a
way which is incompatible with the European Convention on Human Rights. In
making decisions and determining appropriate action the council will have due
regard to the Convention. The Council will interpret the Licensing Act 2003 (LA 2003)
in a manner consistent with the Human Rights Act 1998.

11.2 The Council will consider the effect upon people’s human rights and adopt a
principle of proportionality and the need to balance the rights of the individual with
the rights of the community as a whole. Action taken by the council which affects
another’s rights must be no more onerous then is necessary in a democratic society.

11.3 The Equality Act 2010 requires public bodies to consider all individuals when

carrying out their day to day work — in shaping Policy, in delivering services and in
relation to their own employees. It requires public bodies to have due regard to the
need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunity, and foster good

relations between different people when carrying out their activities.

11.4 The Equality Duty supports good decision making — it encourages public bodies
to understand how different people will be affected by their activities, so that their
policies and services are appropriate and accessible to all and meet different
people’s needs. By understanding the effect of their activities on different people,
and how inclusive public services can support and open up people’s opportunities,
public bodies can be more efficient and effective. The Equality Duty therefore helps
public bodies to deliver the Government’s overall objectives for public services.

Page 37



CONSIDERATION OF APPLICATIONS

14 NEW PREMISES LICENCES

14.1 This Council is aware that in making decisions about applications for licences it
will have regard to:

i) its Statement of Licensing Policy made under section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003

i) the Statutory Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003, and
that decisions made are reasonably consistent with the four licensing objectives.

14.4 Licensing officers will routinely check that the Public Notices at the premises
and the Public Notices in newspapers are displayed in accordance with the
regulations as part of the validation process.

14.5 Licensing officers will also notify ward councillors in whose ward the application
relates to, and the parish council for the relevant parish.

14.7 Where relevant representations are received the application will be referred to
the Licensing Sub-committee for determination at hearing, unless all parties agree
that a hearing is not necessary. Where applications result in the need for a hearing
the process at section 23 of this policy will apply.

22 HEARINGS

22.1 Any application that has resulted in the submission of relevant representations
from any party will be referred to the Licensing Sub-Committee for a hearing and
determination in accordance with the 2003 Act and the Licensing Act 2003
(Hearings) Regulations 2005.

22.2 A sub-committee will consist of three suitably trained members of the Licensing
Committee. No members will serve on a sub-committee involving an application for a
licence within their own district ward. The subcommittee will be advised on the law
by a member of the Council’s Shared Legal Services Team. That legal team member
will not be involved in the application process in order to avoid a conflict of interest
by ensuring a clear separation of roles.

22.3 This Policy will play a key role in achieving consistency in decision making and
will ensure decisions are made in a way which promotes a sustainable leisure
economy for the district.

22.4 Where representations are made only by Responsible Authorities, the Council
would expect applicants and Responsible Authorities to enter into negotiation or
mediation prior to a hearing in an attempt to resolve issues before attending the
licensing hearing.

22.6 Parties will be advised of the hearing date and procedure in advance and in
accordance with the statutory process. At all hearings the sub-committee will have
regard to the Guidance issued under section 182 of the Act. This authority may use
its discretion where there are strong and defensible reasons for departing from the
Guidance and where it considers it right to do so. In any such case this authority will
clearly express and explain its reasons for doing so.

Page 38



22.7 The Council must give the appropriate amount of weight to representations
made by the Police on crime and disorder matters. It will give appropriate weight to
all representations made by all parties based on the content and relevance to the
promotion of all licensing objectives.

22.8 All decision notices will be in writing and will include clearly stated reasons to
explain a decision on an application. Decision notices will be issued within 5 working
days or the same day in the instance of applications for a review.

22.9 In respect of all of the licensing objectives, licensing officers may be asked to
assist in the drafting of licence conditions relevant to the application and
representations in order to assist the Sub-Committee at a hearing.

23 LICENCE CONDITIONS

23.1 A key concept in the Licensing Act is that conditions that are attached to
licences or certificates are tailored to suit the individual style and characteristics of
the premises and its activities and the impact of those activities. Those conditions
will be deemed appropriate and proportionate in order to promote the licensing
objectives at that premises.

23.2 All licences that authorise the sale of alcohol will be subject to the mandatory
conditions set out in the Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Licensing Conditions) Order
2010.

23.3 Applicants will be expected to include appropriate steps within their operating
schedule which will be converted to conditions on a premises licence or club
premises certificate. Those steps will be expected to be achievable and relevant to
the business in question and will ensure the promotion of each of the four licensing
objectives.

23.4 Where applications receive valid representations and are subject to a hearing,
the sub-committee will consider the evidence provided within representations, the
detail of the application, the nature of the premises and business and only where
appropriate will attach conditions to a licence to secure the promotion of the licensing
objectives in light of the evidence provided.

23.5 Decisions on individual licence conditions will be made on a case by case
basis, and where there are concerns over the effective promotion of the licensing
objectives, the applicant will be expected to offer suggestions on how the objectives
can be met. This authority will work closely with all parties and the applicant in
establishing workable and reasonable conditions for new and variation applications.

23.6 In all cases the Council will have regard to the Guidance when considering the
implementation of licence conditions. Further information on the Guidance can be
found at the Home Office website by clicking here: Guidance to the Licensing Act
issued by the Home Office - https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/section-
182-of-the-licensing-act-2003-amended-guidance

23.7 In all cases conditions will aim to promote the licensing objectives, be
unambiguous and enforceable, appropriate to the activities and the business,

Page 39


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/section-182-of-the-licensing-act-2003-amended-guidance
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/section-182-of-the-licensing-act-2003-amended-guidance

achievable and applicable to the premises itself and the areas around the premises
which is within the licence holders control.

23.8 The Council recognises the need to avoid, so far as possible, duplication with
other regulatory systems including Health and Safety at Work, Fire Safety, Food
Hygiene and Nuisance Control. However these regulations may not cover the unique
circumstances of some activities and entertainment. In these circumstances, the
council may therefore, where necessary, attach conditions to premises licenses for
the promotion of the licensing objectives.

Conditions to promote the Prevention of Crime and Disorder

23.9 Under the Act the Council has a duty to promote the licensing objectives, and, a
further duty under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to do all it reasonably can to
prevent crime and disorder in the District.

23.10 The applicant will be expected to detail in their operating schedule how they
will prevent crime and disorder on and close to the premises. Such detail should
reflect the licensable activities on offer, location and character of the area, the nature
of the premises use and the range of customers likely to use the premises.

These may include, but are not limited to, the following:

i) Prevention of disorderly conduct and anti-social behaviour

i) Prevention of underage drinking

iii) Prevention of sales of alcohol to intoxicated customers

iv) Prevention of drunkenness both on and in the vicinity of the premises

v) Prevention of drug use and drug dealing

vi) Restriction of drinks promotions

vii) Use of safety glass

viii) Inclusion of a wind-down time following alcohol sales period

ix) Adequate seating to discourage “vertical drinking”

X) The offer of food and snacks or other entertainment or occupation to discourage
persistent drinking

xi) Prevention of noise nuisance by customers waiting to enter a premises and on
leaving

23.11 In busier premises the Council would expect to see a short (say 30mins) ‘wind
down’ or ‘drinking up’ period allowed for after the cessation time of entertainment
and alcohol sales, as this is effective in assisting in a reduction in noise and
exuberance of customers before leaving the premises.

23.15 The use of CCTV should be considered where appropriate or on the advice

and recommendations of the Police and to a quality and standard approved by the
Police for evidence purposes. Licence holders will be expected to fully comply with
the requirements of the Information Commissioners Office and the Data Protection
Act 1998 in respect of any surveillance equipment installed at a premises.

23.16 In any application the sub-committee will consider each application on its

individual merits and determine the imposition of conditions that are appropriate to
the objectives.

Page 40



Conditions to promote Public Safety

23.17 The applicant will be expected to show that the physical safety of persons
attending the premises will be protected and will offer relevant steps in the operating
schedule to promote this.

23.18 Such steps will not replace the statutory obligation on the applicant to comply
with all relevant legislation under the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1973 or
under the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2004.

Conditions to promote the Prevention of Public Nuisance

23.20 The applicant will be expected to detail steps to prevent nuisance and
disturbance arising from the licensable activities at the premises and from the
customers using the premises.

23.21 The applicant will be expected to demonstrate that they have considered and
included steps to prevent public nuisance, such as:

(i) Proximity of local residents to the premises

(i) Licensable activities proposed and customer base

(iif) Hours and nature of operation

(iv) Risk and Prevention of noise leakage from the premises from equipment,
customers and machinery

(v) Prevention of noise from customers leaving the premises and customer pick up
points outside premises and from the Car Park.

(vi) Availability of public transport to and from the premises

(vii) Noise from use of the garden/outside space including smoking shelters.

(viii) Delivery and collection times and locations.

(ix) Impact of external security or general lighting on residents.

(x) History of management of and complaints about the premises.

(xi) Applicant’s previous success in preventing Public Nuisance.

(xii) Outcomes of discussions with the relevant Responsible Authorities.

(xiii) Impact of location, noise and contamination from outside smoking areas on
neighbours and other customers

(xiv) Collection of litter arising from the premises

(xv) Appropriate times of disposal of glass bottles into external waste receptacles
(xvi) Provision of and encouraging use of toilet facilities for customers prior to leaving
a premises.

(xvii) Notices to clients asking them to respect the amenity of local residents.

23.22 Steps to prevent public nuisance may include a range of options including
noise limiting devices, sound insulation, wind down periods, acoustic lobbies, closing
windows and doors at appropriate times, management of smoking areas, etc.

23.23 Steps will differ depending on the individual premises and activities and it is for

the applicant to ensure that reasonable, effective and appropriate steps are included
within the operating schedule.

Page 41



Conditions to promote the Protection of Children from Harm

23.24 Applicants will be expected to detail steps to protect children at the premises
from any harm. The Council recognises the right of licensees (serving alcohol) to
allow accompanied children into their premises. The Council would not seek to
restrict access by children (above that specified in the Act) unless it is necessary for
the prevention of physical, moral or psychological harm.

23.25 Steps to prevent children from harm must be included where:

(i) There is entertainment or services of an adult nature provided.

(i) There have been previous convictions for under age sales of alcohol.

(iif) There is a known association with drug taking or dealing.

(iv) There is a significant element of gambling on the premises.

(v) There is a presumption that children under 18 should not be permitted entry such
as to nightclubs (apart from when specific events are held for under 18’s).

(vi) Outcomes of discussions with relevant Responsible Authorities suggest such
steps are applicable.

23.26 Nothing in the Licensing Act prevents licensees from excluding children from a

licensed premises and no condition can be added to require the admission of
children.

Page 42



APPENDIX

5

Licensing objectives and aims

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

The legislation provides a clear focus on the promotion of four statutory objectives which
must be addressed when licensing functions are undertaken.

The licensing objectives are:

+ The prevention of crime and disorder;
+ Public safety;

+ The prevention of public nuisance; and
+ The protection of children from harm.

Each objective is of equal importance. There are no other statutory licensing objectives,
so that the promotion of the four objectives is a paramount consideration at all times.

However, the legislation also supports a number of other key aims and purposes.
These are vitally important and should be principal aims for everyone involved in
licensing work.

They include:

« protecting the public and local residents from erime, anti-social behaviour and noise
nuisance caused by irresponsible licensed premises;

+ giving the police and licensing autharities the powers they need to effectively manage
and police the night-time economy and take action against those premises that are
causing problems;

+ recognising the important role which pubs and other licensed premises play in our
local communities by minimising the regulatory burden on business, encouraging
innovation and supporting responsible premises;

+ providing a regulatory framework for alcohol which reflects the needs of local
communities and empowers local authorities to make and enforce decisions about
the most appropriate licensing strategies for their local area; and

« encouraging greater community involvement in licensing decisions and giving local
residents the opportunity to have their say regarding licensing decisions that may
affect them.

The guidance

1.6

Section 182 of the 2003 Act provides that the Secretary of State must issue and, from
time to time, may revise guidance to licensing authorities on the discharge of their
functions under the 2003 Act. This revised guidance takes effect as soon as it is
published. Where a licence application was made prior to the publication of the revised
guidance, it should be processed in accordance with the guidance in effect at the time at
which the application was made; the revised guidance does not apply retrospectively.
However, all applications received by the licensing authority on or after the date the
revised guidance was published should be processed in accordance with the revised
guidance.

Purpose

1.7

This Guidance is provided to licensing authorities in relation to the carrying out of their
functions under the 2003 Act. It also provides information to magistrates’ courts hearing
appeals against licensing decisions and has been made widely available for the benefit
of those who run licensed premises, their legal advisers and the general public. It is a
key medium for promoting best practice, ensuring consistent application of licensing
powers across England and Wales and for promoting faimess, equal treatment and
propaortionality.

Page 43




1.8

The police remain key enforcers of licensing law. This Guidance does not bind police
officers who, within the parameters of their force orders and the law, remain
operationally independent. However, this Guidance is provided to support and assist
police officers in interpreting and implementing the 2003 Act in the promaotion of the four
licensing objectives.

Legal status

19

1.10

Section 4 of the 2003 Act provides that, in carrying out its functions, a licensing authority
must ‘have regard to' guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182, This
Guidance is therefore binding on all licensing authorities to that extent. However, this
Guidance cannot anticipate every possible scenario or set of circumstances that may
arise and, as long as licensing authorities have properly understood this Guidance, they
may depart from it if they have good reason to do 50 and can provide full reasons.
Departure from this Guidance could give rise to an appeal or judicial review, and the
reasons given will then be a key consideration for the courts when considering the
lawfulness and merits of any decision taken.

Mothing in this Guidance should be taken as indicating that any requirement of licensing
law or any other law may be overmidden (including the obligations placed on any public
authorities under human rights legislation). This Guidance does not in any way replace
the statutory provisions of the 2003 Act or add to its scope and licensing authorities
should note that interpretation of the 2003 Act is a matter for the courts. Licensing
authorities and others using this Guidance must take their own professional and legal
advice about its implementation.

Licensing policies

1.11

1.12

Section 5 of the 2003 Act requires a licensing authority to determine and publish a
statement of its licensing policy at least once every five years. The policy must be
published befors it camies out any licensing functions under the 2003 Act.

However, determining and publishing a statement of its policy is a licensing function and
as such the authority must have regard to this Guidance when taking this step. A
licensing authority may depart from its own policy if the individual circumstances of any
case merit such a decision in the interests of the promotion of the licensing objectives.
But once again, it is important that it should be able to give full reasons for departing
from its published statement of licensing policy. Where revisions to this Guidance are
issued by the Secretary of State, there may be a period of time when the licensing
policy statement is inconsistent with the Guidance (for example, during any consultation
by the licensing authority). In these circumstances, the licensing authority should have
regard, and give appropriate weight, to this Guidance and its own existing licensing
policy statement.

Licensable activities

1.13

Faor the purposes of the 2003 Act. the following are licensable activities:

+ The sale by retail of alcohol;

« The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, 2 member of the
club;

+ The provision of regulated entertainment; and
+ The provision of late night refreshment.

Further explanation of these terms is provided in Chapter 3.

Page 44



General principles

1.15

If an application for a premises licence or club premises certificate has been made
lawfully and there have been no representations from responsible authorities or other
persons, the licensing authority must grant the application, subject only to conditions
that are consistent with the operating schedule and relevant mandatory conditions. It is
recommended that licence applicants contact responsible authorities when preparing
their operating schedules.

Licence conditions — general principles

1.16

Conditions on a premises licence or club premises certificate are important in setting the
parameters within which premises can lawfully operate. The use of wording such as
“must”, “shall” and “will" is encouraged. Licence conditions:

+ must be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives;
+ must be precise and enforceable;
= must be unambiguous and clear in what they intend (o achieve;

= should not duplicate other statutory requirements or other duties or responsibiliies
placed on the employer by ather legislation;

+ must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the premises
and events concerned;

+ should not be standardised and may be unlawful when it cannot be demonstrated
that they are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives in an individual
case:

+ should not replicate offences set out in the 2003 Act or other legislation;
« should be proportionate, justifiable and be capable of being met;

+ cannot seek to manage the behaviour of customers once they are beyond the direct
management of the licence halder and their staff, but may impact on the behaviour of
customers in the immediate vicinity of the premises or as they enter or leave; and

« should be written in a prescriptive format.

Each application on its own merits

117

Each application must be considered on its own merits and in accordance with the
licensing authority’s statement of licensing policy; for example, if the application falls
within the scope of a cumulative impact policy. Conditions attached to licences and
certificates must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the
premises and events concermned. This is essential to avoid the imposition of
disproportionate and overly burdensome conditions on premises where there is no need
for such conditions. Standardised conditions should be avoided and indeed may be
unlawful where they cannot be shown to be appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives in an individual case.

Other relevant legislation

1.19

While licence conditions should not duplicate other statutory provisions, licensing
authorities and licensees should be mindful of requirements and responsibilities placed
on them by other legislation. Legislation which may be relevant includes:

+ The Gambling Act 2005

+ The Environmental Protection Act 1990

+ The MNoise Act 1996

+ The Clean Neighbourhoods and Environmental Act 2005

+ The Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005

+ The Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974

+ The Equality Act 2010

+ The Immigration Act 2016

Page 45



Crime and disorder

21

2.3

Licensing authorities should look to the police as the main source of advice on crime
and disorder. They should also seek to involve the local Community Safety Partnership
{CSP).

Conditions should be targeted on deterrence and preventing crime and disorder
including the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises {see paragraph 10.10).
For example. where there is good reason to suppose that disorder may take place. the
presence of closed-circuit television (CCTV) cameras both inside and immediately
outside the premises can actively deter disorder, nuisance, anti-social behaviour and
crime generally. Some licence holders may wish to have cameras on their premises for
the prevention of crime directed against the business itself, its staff, or its customers.
But any condition may require a broader approach. and it may be appropriate to ensure
that the precise location of cameras is set out on plans to ensure that certain areas are
properly covered and there is no subsequent dispute over the terms of the condition.

Public safety

2.7

2.8

29

Licence holders have a responsibility to ensure the safety of those using their premises,
as a part of their duties under the 2003 Act. This concerns the safety of people using the
relevant premises rather than public health which is addressed in other legislation.
Physical safety includes the prevention of accidents and injuries and other immediate
harms that can result from alcohol consumption such as unconsciousness or alcohol
poisoning. Conditions relating to public safety may also promote the crime and disorder
objective as noted above. There will of course be occasions when a public safety
condition could incidentally benefit 8 person’s health more generally, but it should not be
the purpose of the condition as this would be outside the licensing authority’s powers
{be ultra vires) under the 2003 Act. Conditions should not be imposed on a premises
licence or club premises certificate which relate to cleanliness or hygiene.

A number of matters should be considerad in relation to public safety. Thess may
include:

+ Fire safety;
* Ensuring appropriate access for emergency services such as ambulances;

+ Good communication with local authorities and emergency services, for example
communications networks with the police and signing up for local incident alerts (see
paragraph 2.4 above);

* Ensuring the presence of trained first aiders on the premises and appropriate first aid
Kits;

+ Ensuring the safety of people when leaving the premises (for example, through the
provision of information on late-night transportation);

+ Ensuring appropriate and frequent waste disposal, particularly of glass bottles;

« Ensuring appropriate limits on the maximum capacity of the premises (see
paragraphs 2.12-2.13, and Chapter 10; and

« Considering the use of CCTV in and around the premises (as noted in paragraph 2.3
above, this may also assist with promoting the crime and disorder objective).

The measures that are appropriate to promote public safety will vary between premises
and the matters listed above may not apply in all cases. As set out in Chapter 8 (8.38-
8.48), applicants should consider when making their application which steps it is
appropriate to take to promote the public safety objective and demonstrate how they
achieve that.

Page 46



Ensuring safe departure of those using the premises

210  Licence holders should make provision to ensure that premises users safely leave their
premises. Measures that may assist include:

+ Providing information on the premises of local taxi companies who can provide safe
transportation home; and

* Ensuring adequate lighting outside the premises, particularly on paths leading to and
from the premises and in car parks.

Public nuisance

215  The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities, through
representations, to consider what constitutes public nuisance and what is appropriate to
prevent it in terms of conditions attached to specific premises licences and club
premises certificates. It is therefore important that in considering the promation of this
licensing objective, licensing authorities and responsible authorities focus on the effect
of the licensable activities at the specific premises on persons living and working
{including those carrying on business) in the area around the premises which may be
disproportionate and unreasonable. The issues will mainly concern noise nuisance, light
pollution, noxious smells and litter.

216  Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It is however
not narmowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law meaning. it may
include in appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and working amenity and
environment of other persons living and working in the arga of the licensed premises.
Public nuisance may also anse as a result of the adverse effects of artificial light, dust.
odour and insects or where its effect is prejudicial to health.

247  Conditions relating to noise nuisance will usually concern steps appropriate to control
the levels of noise emanating from premises. This might be achieved by a simple
measure such as ensuring that doors and windows are kept closed after a particular
time, or persons are not permitted in garden areas of the premises after a certain time.,
More sophisticated measures like the installation of acoustic curtains or rubber speaker
mounts to mitigate sound escape from the premises may be appropriate. However,
conditions in relation to live or recorded music may not be enforceable in circumstances
where the entertainment activity itself is not licensable (see chapter 16). Any conditions
appropriate to promote the prevention of public nuisance should be tailored to the type,
nature and characteristics of the specific premises and its licensable activities. Licensing
authorities should avoid inappropriate or disproportionate measures that could deter
events that are valuable to the community, such as live music. Noise limiters, for
example, are expensive to purchase and install and are likely to be a considerable
burden for smaller venues.

218  As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be appropriate in certain
circumstances where provisions in other legislation adequately protect those living in the
area of the premises. But as stated earlier in this Guidance, the approach of licensing
authorities and responsible authorities should be one of prevention and when their
powers are engaged, licensing authaorities should be aware of the fact that other
legislation may not adequately cover concerns raised in relevant representations and
additional conditions may be appropriate.

2.19  Where applications have given rise to representations, any appropriate conditions
should normally focus on the most sensitive periods. For example, the most sensitive
period for people being disturbed by unreasonably loud music is at night and into the

Page 47



2.20

M

early maming when residents in adjacent properties may be attempting to go to sleep or
are sleeping. This is why there is still a need for a licence for perfformances of live music
between 11 pm and 8 am. In certain circumstances, conditions relating to noise
emanating from the premises may also be appropriate to address any disturbance
anticipated as customers enter and leave.

Measures to control light pollution will also require careful thought. Bright lighting
outside premises which is considered appropriate to prevent crime and disorder may
itself give rise to light pollution for some neighbours, Applicants, licensing authorities
and responsible authorties will need to balance these issues,

Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters for the
personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who engages in anti-
social behaviour is accountable in their own right. However, it would be perfectly
reasonable for a licensing authority to impose a condition, following relevant
representations, that requires the licence holder or club to place signs at the exits from
the building encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area, or that, if they
wish to smoke, to do so at designated places on the premises instead of outside, and to
respect the rights of people living nearby to a peaceful night.

Protection of children from harm

222

2.26

2.29

3.1

The protection of children fram harm includes the protection of children from moral,
psychological and physical harm. This includes not only protecting children from the
harms associated directly with alcohol consumption but also wider harms such as
exposura to strong language and sexual expletives (for example, in the context of
exposura to certain films or adult entertainment). Licensing authorities must also
consider the need to protect children from sexual exploitation when undertaking
licensing functions.

Licensing authorities and responsible authorities should expect applicants, when
preparing an operating schedule or club operating schedule, to set out the steps to be
taken to protect children from harm when on the premises.

Licensing authorities should give considerable weight to representations about child
protection matters. In addition to the responsible authority whose functions relate
directly to child protection, the Director of Public Health may also have access to
relevant evidence to inform such representations. These representations may include,
amongst other things, the use of health data about the harms that alcohol can cause to
underage drinkers. Where a responsible authority, or ather person, presents evidence to
the licensing autharity linking specific premises with harms to children (such as
ambulance data or emergency department attendances by persons under 18 years old
with alcohaol- related ilinesses or injuries) this evidence should be considered, and the
licensing autharity shiould also consider what action is appropriate to ensure this
licensing objective is effectively enforced. In relation to applications for the grant of &
licence in areas where evidence is presented on high levels of alcohol-related harms in
persons aged under 18, it is recommended that the licensing authority considers what
conditions may be appropriate to ensure that this objective is promoted effectivaly.

A premises licence authorises the use of any premises (see Chapter 5) for licensable
aclivities. Licensable activilies are defined in section 1 of the 2003 Act. and a fuller
description of certain activities is set out in Schedules 1 and 2 to the 2003 Act.

Page 48



3.2

g1

The licensable activities are:

+ the sale by retail of alcohol;

+ the supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, 8 member of the
club;

+ the provision of regulated entertainment: and

+ the provision of late night refreshment.

Premises licences are issuad by the licensing authority in which the premises are
situated or, in the case of premises straddling an area boundary, the licensing authority
where the greater part of the premises is situated. Where the premises is located
equally in two or more areas, the applicant may choose but, in these rare cases, it is
impartant that each of the licensing authorities involved maintain close contact.

Responsible authorities

B.7 The second group —“responsible authorities™— are public bodies that must be fully
notified of applications and that are entitled to make representations to the licensing
authority in relation to the application for the grant, variation or review of a premises
licence. These representations must still be considered ‘relevant’ by the licensing
authority and relate to one or more of the licensing objectives. For all premises,
responsible authorities include:

+ the relevant licensing authority and any other licensing authority in whose area part of
the premises is situated:
+ the chief officer of police;
+ the local fire and rescue authority:
+ the relevant enforcing authority under the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974,
+ the local authority with responsibility for environmental health;
+ the local planning authority:
+ a body that represents those who are responsible for, or interested in, matters
relating to the protection of children from harm:
« each local authority's Director of Public Health (DPH) in England® and Local Health
Boards (in Wales);
+ the local weights and measures authority (trading standards); and
+ Home Office Immigration Enforcement (on behalf of the Secretary of State).
Other persons
813  As well as responsible authornties, any other person can play a role in a number of

licensing processes under the 2003 Act. This includes any individual, body or business
entitied to make representations to licensing authorities in relation to applications for the
grant, variation, minor variation or review of premises licences and club premises
certificates, regardless of their geographic proximity to the premises. In addition, these
persons may themselves seek a review of a premises licence. Any representations
made by these persons must be ‘relevant’, in that the representation relates to one or
more of the licensing objectives. It must also not be considered by the licensing
autharity to be frivalous or vexatious. In the case of applications for reviews, there is an
additional requirement that the grounds for the review should not be considered by the
licensing authority to be repetitious. Chapter 9 of this guidance (paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10)
provides more detail on the definition of relevant, frivolous and vexatious
representations.,

Page 49



While any of these persons may act in their own right, they may also request that a
representative makes the representation to the licensing authority on their behalf. A
representative may include a legal representative, a friend, a Member of Parliament, a
Member of the Welsh Government, or a local ward or parish councillor who can all act in
such a capacity.

Steps to promote the licensing objectives

8.38

8.39

8.40

B.41

B8.42

In completing an operating schedule, applicants are expected to have regard to the
statement of licensing policy for their area. They must also be aware of the expectations
of the licensing authority and the responsible authorities as to the steps that are
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives, and to demonstrate knowledge
of their local area when describing the steps they propose to take to promote the
licensing objectives. Licensing authorities and responsible authorities are expected to
publish information about what is meant by the promotion of the licensing objectives and
to ensure that applicants can readily access advice about these matters. However,
applicants are also expected to undertake their own enquiries about the area in which
the premises are situated to inform the content of the application.

Applicants are, in particular, expected to obtain sufficient information to enable them to
demaonstrate, when setting out the steps they propose to take to promote the licensing
objectives, that they understand:

+ the layout of the local area and physical environment including crime and disorder
hotspots, proximity to residential premises and proximity to areas where children may
congregate;

* any risk posed to the local area by the applicants’ proposed licensable activities: and

+ any local initiatives (for example, local crime reduction initigtives or voluntary
schemes including local taxi-marshalling schemes. street pastors and other
schemes) which may help to mitigate potential risks.

Applicants are expected to include positive proposals in their application on how they
will manage any potential risks. Where specific policies apply in the area (for example, a
cumulative impact policy), applicants are also expected to demonstrate an
understanding of how the policy impacts on their application; any measures they will
take to mitigate the impact; and why they consider the application should be an
exception to the policy.

It is expected that enquiries about the locality will assist applicants when determining
the steps that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. For example,
premises with close proximity to residential premises should consider what effect this
will have on their smoking, noise management and dispersal policies to ensure the
promotion of the public nuisance objective. Applicants must consider all factors which
may be relevant to the promotion of the licensing objectives, and where there are no
known concems, acknowledge this in their application.

The majarity of information which applicants will require should be available in the
licensing policy statement in the area. Other publicly available sources which may be of
use to applicants include:

+ the Crime Mapping website;

* Neighbourhood Statistics websiles;

« websites or publications by local responsible authorities;

« websites or publications by local voluntary schemes and initiatives; and

+ on-line mapping tools.

Page 50



8.44

8.45

B.48

Applicants are expectad to provide licensing authorities with sufficient information in this
section to determine the extent to which their proposed steps are appropriate to
promote the licensing objectives in the local area. Applications must not be based on
providing a set of standard conditions to promote the licensing objectives and applicants
are expected to make it clear why the steps they are proposing are appropriate for the
premises.

All parties are expected to work together in partnership to ensure that the licensing
objectives are promoted collectively. Where there are no disputes, the steps that
applicants propose to take to promote the licensing objectives, as set out in the
operating schedule, will very often translate directly into conditions that will be attached
to premises licences with the minimum of fuss.

For some premises. it is possible that no measures will be appropriate to promote one
or mare of the licensing objectives, for example, because they are adequately covered
by other existing legislation, It is however important that all operating schedules should
be precise and clear about the measures that are proposed to promote each of the
licensing objectives,

Advertising applications

87T

B.78

8.79

8.80

The requirements governing the advertisement of applications for the grant. variation or
review of premises licences and club premises certificates are contained in the
regulations made under the 2003 Act which are published on the Government's
legislation website.

Applicants are required to:

publish a notice in a local newspaper or, if there is none, in a local newsletter, circular
or similar document circulating in the area in which the premises are situated: and
display a brief summary of the application on an A4 size notice immediately on or
outside the premises.

As prescribed in regulations, licensing authorities must also place a notice on their
website outlining key details of the application as set out in regulations, including:

the name of the applicant or club;

the postal address of the premises or club premises;

the postal address and, where applicable, the internel address where the relevant
licensing authority's register is kept and where and when the record of the application
may be inspected;

the date by which representations from responsible authorities or other persons
should be received and how these representations should be made: and

that it is an offence knowingly or recklessly to make a false statement in connection
with an application and the maximum fine for which a person is liable on summary
conviction for the offence.

The summary of the application should set out matters such as the proposed licensable
activities and the proposed hours of opening and should be clearly displayed for the
period during which representations may be made, together with information about
where the details of the application may be viewed.

Page 51



9.

Determining applications

General

a1

When a licensing authority receives an application for a new premises licence or an
application to vary an existing premises licence, it must determine whether the
application has been made in accordance with section 17 of the 2003 Act, and in
accordance with regulations made under sections 17(3) to (), 34, 42, 54 and 55 of the
2003 Act. It must similarly determine applications for the grant of club premises
cerfificates made in accordance with section 71 of the 2003 Act, and in accordance with
regulations made under sections 71(4) to (7), 84, 91 and 92 of the 2003 Act. This
means that the licensing authority must consider among other things whether the
application has been properly advertised in accordance with those regulations.

Where representations are made

9.3

Where a representation concerning the licensing objectives is made by a responsible
authority about a proposed operating schedule and it is relevant (see paragraphs 9.4 to
9.10 below), the licensing authority's discretion will be engaged. It will also be engaged
if another person makes relevant representations to the licensing authority, which are
also not frivolous or vexatious (see paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10 below). Relevant
representations can be made in opposition to, or in support of, an application and can
be made by any individual. body or business that has grounds to do so.

Relevant, vexatious and frivolous representations

9.4

9.5

9.6

A representation is “relevant” if it relates to the likely effect of the grant of the licence on
the promaotion of at least one of the licensing objectives. For example, a representation
from a local businessperson about the commercial damage caused by competition from
new licensed premises would not be relevant. On the other hand, a representation by a
businessperson that nuisance caused by new premises would deter customers from
entering the local area, and the steps proposed by the applicant to prevent that
nuisance were inadequate, would be relevant. In other words, representations should
relate to the impact of licensable activiies carried on from premises on the objectives.
For representations in relation to variations to be relevant, they should be confined to

the subject matter of the variation. There is no requirement for a responsible authority or
other person to produce a recorded history of problems at premises to support their
representations. and in fact this would not be possible for new premises.

It is for the licensing authority to determine whether a representation (other than a
representation from responsible authority) is frivolous or vexatious on the basis of what
might ordinarily be considered to be vexatious or frivolous, A representation may be
considered to be vexatious if it appears to be intended to cause aggravation or
annoyance, whether o a competitor or other person, without reasonable cause or
justification. Vexatious circumstances may arise because of disputes between rival
businesses and local knowledge will therefore be invaluable in considering such
matters. Licensing authorities can consider the main effect of the representation, and
whether any inconvenience or expense caused by it could reasonably be considerad to
be proportionate.

Frivolous representations would be essentially categorised by a lack of seriousness.
Frivolous representations would concern issues which, at most. are minor and in
relation o which no remedial steps would be warranted or proportionate.

Page 52



9.9

It is recommended that, in borderline cases, the bensfit of the doubt about any aspect of
a representation should be given to the person making that representation. The
subsequent hearing would then provide an opportunity for the person or body making
the representation to amplify and clarify it.

The role of responsible authorities

9.1

Respaonsible authorities under the 2003 Act are automatically notified of all new
applications. While all responsible authorities may make representations regarding
applications for licences and club premises certificates and full variation applications, it
is the responsibility of each responsible autharity to determine when they have
appropriate grounds to do so.

Representations from the police

9.12

In their role as a responsible authority, the police are an essential source of advice and
information on the impact and potential impact of licensable activities, particularly on the
crime and disorder objective. The police have a key role in managing the night-time
economy and should have good working relationships with those operating in their local
area’. The police should be the licensing authority's main source of advice on matters
relating to the promotion of the crime and disorder licensing objective, but may also be
able to make relevant representations with regard to the other licensing objectives if
they have evidence to support such representations. The licensing authority should
accept all reasonable and proportionate representations made by the police unless the
autharity has evidence that to do so would not be appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives. However, it remains incumbent on the police to ensure that their
representations can withstand the scrutiny to which they would be subject at a hearing.

Disclosure of personal details of persons making representations

9.26

9.27

9.28

9.29

9.30

Where a notice of a hearing is given to an applicant. the licensing authority is required
under the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 to provide the applicant with
copies of the relevant representations that have been made.

In exceptional circumstances, persons making representations to the licensing authority
may be reluctant to do so because of fears of intimidation or violence if their personal
details, such as name and address, are divulged to the applicant.

Where licensing authorities consider that the person has a genuing and well-founded
fear of intimidation and may be deterred from making a representation on this basis,
they may wish to consider alternative approaches.

For instance, they could advise the persons to provide the relevant responsible authority
with details of how they consider that the licensing objectives are being undermined so
that the responsible authority can make representations if appropriate and justified.

The licensing authority may also decide to withhold some or all of the person’s personal
details from the applicant, giving only minimal details (such as street name or general
location within a street). However, withholding such details should only be considered
where the circumstances justify such action.

Page 53



Hearings

9.31

9.32

9.34

0.35

9.37

9.38

Regulations governing hearings may be found on the www.legislation.gov.uk website. If
the licensing autharity decides that representations are relevant, it must hold a hearing
to consider them. The need for a hearing can only be avoided with the agreement of the
licensing authaority, the applicant and all of the persons who made relevant
representations. In cases where only ‘positive’ representations are received, without
qualifications, the licensing authority should consider whether a hearing is required. To
this end, it may wish to notify the persons who made representations and give them the
opportunity to withdraw those representations. This would need to be done in sufficient
time before the hearing to ensure that parties were not put to unnecessary
inconvenience.

Responsible authorities should try to conclude any discussions with the applicant in
good time before the hearing. If the application is amended at the last moment, the
licensing committee should consider giving other persons time to address the revised
application before the hearing commences,

Applicants should be encouraged to contact responsible authorities before formulating
their applications so that the mediation process may begin before the statutory time
limits come into effect after submission of an application. The hearing process must
meet the requirements of regulations made under the 2003 Act. Where matters arise
which are not covered by the regulations, licensing authorities may make arrangements
as they see fit as long as they ars lawful.

There is no requirement in the 2003 Act for responsible authorities that have made
representations to attend. but it is generally good practice and assists committees in
reaching more informed decisions. Where several responsible authorities within a local
authority have made representations on an application, a single local authority officer
may represent them at the hearing if the responsible authorities and the licensing
authority agree. This local authority officer representing other responsible authorities
may be a licensing officer, but only if this licensing officer is acting as a responsible
authority on behalf of the licensing authority and has had no role in the licensing
determination process, This is to ensure that the responsible authorities are represented
by an independent officer separate from the licensing determination process.

As a matter of practice, licensing authorities should seek to focus the hearing on the
steps considered appropriate to promote the particular licensing objective or objectives
that have given rise to the specific representation and avoid straying into undisputed
areas. A responsible authority or other person may choose to rely on their written
representation. They may not add further representations to those disclosed to the
applicant prior to the hearing, but they may expand on their existing representation.

In determining the application with a view to promoting the licensing objectives in the
overall interests of the local community. the licensing authority must give appropriate
weight to:

+ the steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives;

+ the representations (including supporting information) presented by all the parties:
+ this Guidance;

+ its own statement of licensing policy.

Page 54



9.39

9.40

The licensing authority should give its decision within five working days of the
conclusion of the hearing (or immediately in certain specified cases) and provide
reasons to support it. This will be important if there is an appeal by any of the parties.
Matification of & decision must be accompanied by information on the right of the party
to appeal. After considering all the relevant issues, the licensing authority may grant the
application subject to such conditions that are consistent with the operating schedule.

Any conditions imposed must be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing
objectives; there is no power for the licensing authority to attach a condition that is
merely aspirational. For example, conditions may not be attached which relate solely to
the health of customers rather than their direct physical safety. Any conditions added to
the licence must be those imposed at the hearing or those agreed when a hearing has
not been necessary.

Alternatively, the licensing authority may refuse the application on the grounds that this
is appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. It may also refuse to specify
a designated premises supervisor andlor only allow certain requested licensable
activities. In the interests of transparency, the licensing authority should publish
hearings procedures in full on its website to ensure that those involved have the maost
current information.

Determining actions that are appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives

9.42

9.43

9.44

Licensing authorities are best placed to determine what actions are appropriate for the
promotion of the licensing objectives in their areas. All licensing determinations should
be considered on a case-by-case basis. They should take into account any
representations or objections that have been received from responsible authorities or
other persons, and representations made by the applicant or premises user as the case
may be.

The authority's determination should be evidence-based, justified as being appropriate
for the promotion of the licensing objectives and proportionate to what it is intended to
achieve,

Determination of whether an action or step is appropriate for the promaotion of the
licensing objectives requires an assessment of what action or step would be suitable to
achieve that end. While this does not therefore require a licensing authority to decide
that no lesser step will achieve the aim, the authority should aim to consider the
potential burden that the condition would impose on the premises licence holder (such
as the financial burden due to restrictions on licensable activities) as well as the
potential benefit in terms of the promotion of the licensing objectives. However, it is
imperative that the authority ensures that the factors which form the basis of its
determination are limited to consideration of the promotion of the objectives and nothing
outside those parameters. As with the consideration of licence variations, the licensing
authority should consider wider issues such as other conditions already in place to
mitigate potential negative impact on the promaotion of the licensing objectives and the
track record of the business. Further advice on determining what is appropriate when
imposing conditions on & licence or cerlificate is provided in Chapter 10. The licensing
authority is expected to come to its determination based on an assessment of the
evidence on both the risks and benefits either for or against making the determination.

Page 55



Considering cases where licensing and planning applications are
made simultaneously

9.45

Where businesses have indicated, when applying for a licence under the 2003 Act. that
they have also applied for planning permission or that they intend to do so, licensing
committees and officers should consider discussion with their planning counterparts
prior to determination with the aim of agreeing mutually acceptable operating hours and
scheme designs.

General

10.1

102

103

This chapter provides further guidance in relation to conditions attached to premises
licences and club premises certificates. General principles on licence conditions are set
out in Chapter 1 (see paragraph 1.16).

Conditions include any limitations or restrictions attached to a licence or certificate and
essentially are the steps or actions that the holder of the premises licence or the club
premises certificate will be required to take or refrain from taking in relation to the
carrying on of licensable activities at the premises in question. Failure to comply with
any condition attached to a licence or certificate is a criminal offence, which on
conviction is punishable by an unlimited fine or up to six months’ imprisonment. The
courts have made clear that it is particularly important that conditions which are
imprecise or difficult for a licence holder to observe should be avoided.

There are three types of condition that may be attached to a licence or certificate:
proposed, imposed and mandatory. Each of these categories is described in more detail
below.

Proposed conditions

10.4

10.5

The conditions that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives should
emerge initially from the risk assessment carried out by a prospective licence or
certificate holder, which they should carry out before making their application for a
premises licence or club premises certificate. This would be translated into the steps
recorded in the operating schedule or club operating schedule, which must also set out
the proposed hours durning which licensable activities will be conducted and any other
hours during which the premises will be open to the public.

It is not acceptable for licensing authorities to simply replicate the wording from an
applicant's operating schedule. A condition should be interpreted in accordance with the
applicant’'s intention.

Consistency with steps described in operating schedule

10.6

10.7

The 2003 Act provides that where an operating schedule or club operating schedule has
been submitted with an application and there have been no relevant representations made
by responsible authorities or any other person, the licence or certificate must be granted
subject only to such conditions as are consistent with the schedule accompanying the
application and any mandatory conditions required under the 2003 Act.

Consistency means that the effect of the condition should be substantially the same as
that intended by the terms of the operating schedule. If conditions are broken, this may
lead to a criminal prosecution or an application for a review and it is extremely important
therefore that they should be expressed on the licence or certificate in unequivocal and
unambiguous terms. The duty imposed by conditions on the licence holder or club must
be clear to the licence holder, club, enforcement officers and the courts.

Page 56



Imposed conditions

108

109

The licensing authority may not impose any conditions unless its discretion has been
exercised following receipt of relevant representations and it is satisfied as a result of a
hearing (unless all parties agree a hearing is not necessary) that it is appropriate to
impose conditions to promote one or more of the four licensing objectives. In order to
promote the crime prevention licensing objective conditions may be included that are
aimed at preventing illegal working in licensed premises. This provision also applies to
minor variations.

It is possible that in some cases no additional conditions will be appropriate to promote
the licensing objectives,

Proportionality

10,10

The 2003 Act requires that licensing conditions should be tailored to the size, type,
location and charactenistics and activities taking place at the premises concernad.
Conditions should be determined on a case-by-case basis and standardised conditions
which ignore these individual aspects should be avoided. For example, conditions
should not be used to implement a general policy in a given area such as the use of
CCTV. polycarbonate drinking vessels or identity scanners where they would not be
appropriate to the specific premises. Conditions that are considered appropriate for the
prevention of illegal working in premises licensed to sell alcohol or late night
refreshment might include requiring a premises licence holder to undertake right to work
checks on all staff employed at the licensed premises or requiring that a copy of any
document checked as part of & right to work check is retained at the licensed premises.
Licensing authorities and other responsible authorities should be alive to the indirect
costs that can arise because of conditions. These could be a deterrent to holding events
that are valuable to the community or for the funding of good and important causes.
Licensing authorities should therefore ensure that any conditions they impose are only
those which are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.

Hours of trading

10.13

10.14

10.15

The Government acknowledges that different licensing strategies may be appropriate
for the promation of the licensing objectives in different areas. The 2003 Act gives the
licensing autharity power to make decisions about the hours during which premises can
conduct licensable activities as part of the implementation of its licensing policy
staterment. Licensing authorities are best placed to make decisions about appropriate
opening hours in their areas based on their local knowledge and in consultation with
responsible authorities. However, licensing authorities must always consider each
application and must not impose predetermined licensed opening hours, without giving
individual consideration to the merits of each application.

Where there are objections to an application to extend the hours during which licensable
activities are to be carried on and the licensing authority determines that this would
undermine the licensing objectives, it may reject the application or grant it with
appropriate conditions and/or different hours from those requested.

Shops, stores and supermarkets should normally be free to provide sales of alcohol for
consumption off the premises at any times when the retail outiet is open for shopping
unless there are good reasons, based on the licensing objectives, for restricting those
hours.

Mandatory conditions in relation to the supply of alcohol

1025 The 2003 Act provides for the following mandatory conditions to be included in every

licence andlor club premises certificate in the circumstances specified.

Page 57



Designated premises supervisor

10.26

10.27

10.28

The 2003 Act provides that, where a premises licence authorises the supply of alcohal,
it must include a condition that no supply of alcohol may be made at a time when no
designated premises supervisor has been specified in the licence or at a time when the
designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or the personal
licence has been suspended,

The main purpose of the ‘designated premises supervisor as defined in the 2003 Act is
to ensure that there is always one specified individual among these personal licence
holders who can be readily identified for the premises where a premises licence is in
force. That person will normally have been given day to day responsibility for running
the premises by the premises licence holder. The requirements set out in relation to the
designated premises supervisor and authonsation of alcohol sales by a personal licence
holder do not apply to community premises in respect of which a successful application
has been made to disapply the usual mandatory conditions in sections 19(2) and 19(3)
of the 2003 Act {see Chapter 4 of this Guidance).

The 2003 Act does not require a designated premises supervisor or any other personal
licence holder to be present on the premises at all times when alcohol is sold. However,
the designated premises supervisor and the premises licence holder remain responsible
for the premises at all times including compliance with the terms of the 2003 Act and
conditions attached to the premises licence to promote the licensing objectives.

Age verification

10.46

10.47

10.48

The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age
verification policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohal. This
must 85 8 minimum require individuals who appear to the responsible person (see
paragraph 10.39) to be under the age of 18 years of age to produce on request, before
being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth, and sither a
holographic mark or ultraviolet feature. The Home Office encourages licensed premises
to accept cards bearing the Proof of Age Standards Scheme (PASS) hologram as their
preferred proof of age, while acknowledging that many other forms of identification meet
the requirements of the mandatory condition.

The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that staff
{in particular, staff who are involved in the supply of alcohol) are made aware of the
existence and content of the age verification policy which applies by the premises.

The designated premises supervisor (where there is one) must ensure that the supply of
alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy. This
means that the OPS has personal responsibility for ensuring that staff are not only
aware of, but are also applying. the age verification policy.

The Licensing Act 2003

14.1

This chapter provides guidance on the development and preparation of local statements
of licensing policy for publication by licensing authorities, the general principles that it is
recommended should underpin them, and core content to which licensing authorities are
free to add.

Page 58



General

14.2

14.3

Section 5 of the 2003 Act requires a licensing autharity to prepare and publish a
staterment of its licensing policy at least every five years. Such a policy must be
published before the authority carries out any function in respect of individual
applications and notices made under the terms of the 2003 Act. During the five-year
period, the policy must be kept under review and the licensing authority may make any
revisions to it as it considers approprigte, for instance in the light of feedback from the
local community on whether the licensing objectives are being met. If the licensing
authority determines and publishes its policy in this way, 8 new five-year period
commences on the date it is published. Previously, licensing authorities were required to
determine their licensing policies for each three-year period. Licensing policies
published in respect of the three-year period that began on 7 January 2011 are to be
treated as though they apply to a period of five years beginning at that date.

Where revisions to the section 182 Guidance are made by the Secretary of State, it will
be for the licensing authority to determine whether revisions to its own licensing policy
statement are appropriate.

Fundamental principles

14.9

1410

14.11

14.12

1413

All statements of policy should begin by stating the four licensing objectives, which the
licensing policy should promote. In determining its policy, a licensing authority must
have regard to this Guidance and give appropriate weight to the views of consultess.

While statements of policy may set out a general approach to making licensing
decisions, they must not ignare or be inconsistent with provisions in the 2003 Act. For
example, a statement of policy must not undermine the right of any person to apply
under the terms of the 2003 Act for a variety of permissions and to have any such
application considered on its individual merits.

Similarly, no statement of policy should override the right of any person to make
representations on an application or to seek a review of a licence or certificate where
provision has been made for them to do so in the 2003 Act.

Statements of policies should make clear that:

« licensing is about regulating licensable activities on licensed premises, by qualifying
clubs and at temporary events within the terms of the 2003 Act; and

- conditions attached to various authorisations will be focused on matters which are
within the control of individual licence holders and others with relevant authorisations,
i.e. the premises and its vicinity.

A statement of policy should also make clear that licensing law is not the primary
mechanism for the general control of nuisance and anti-social behaviour by individuals
once they are away from the licensed premises and, therefore, beyond the direct control
of the individual, club or business holding the licence, certificate or authorisation
concermead. Monetheless, it is a key aspect of such control and licensing law will always
be part of a holistic approach to the management of the evening and night-time

economy in town and city centres.

The need for licensed premises

14.19

There can be confusion about the difference between the “need” for premises and the
“‘cumulative impact” of premises on the licensing objectives, for example, on crime and
disorder. “Need" concemns the commercial demand for another pub or restaurant or
hotel and is a matter for the planning authority and for the market. This is not a matter
for a licensing authority in discharging its licensing functions or for its statement of
licensing policy.

Page 59



Licensing hours

14.44

14.45

With regard to licensing hours, the Government acknowledges that different licensing
approaches may be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives in different
areas. The 2003 Act gives the licensing authority power to make decisions regarding
licensed opening hours as part of the implementation of its licensing policy statement
and licensing authorities are best placed to make such decisions based on their local
knowledge and in consultation with other responsible authorities. However, licensing
authorities must always consider each application and must not impose predetermined
licensed opening hours, without giving individual consideration to the merits of each
application.

Statements of licensing policy should set out the licensing authority's approach
regarding licensed opening hours and the strategy it considers appropriate for the
promotion of the licensing objectives in its area. The statement of licensing policy should
emphasise the consideration which will be given to the individual merits of an
application. The Government recognises that licensed premises make an important
contribution to our local communities, and has given councils a range of tools to
effectively manage the different pressures that licensed premises can bring. In
determining appropriate strategies around licensed opening hours, licensing authorities
cannot seek to restrict the activities of licensed premises where it is not appropriate for

the promation of the licensing objectives to do so.

Page 60



Limitations on special policies relating to cumulative impact

14.44 A CIA should never be absolute. Statements of licensing policy should always allow
for the circumstances of each application to be considered properly and for applications that
are unlikely to add to the cumulative impact on the licensing objectives to be granted. After
receiving relevant representations in relation to a new application for or a variation of a
licence or certificate, the licensing authority must consider whether it would be justified in
departing from its CIA in the light of the individual circumstances of the case. The impact can
be expected to be different for premises with different styles and characteristics. For
example, while a large nightclub or high capacity public house might add to problems of
cumulative impact, a small restaurant or a theatre may not. If the licensing authority decides
that an application should be refused, it will still need to show that the grant of the application
would undermine the promotion of one or more of the licensing objectives and that
appropriate conditions would be ineffective in preventing the problems involved.

14.45 CIAs should never be used as a ground for revoking an existing licence or certificate
when representations are received about problems with those premises. Where the licensing
authority has concerns about the effect of activities at existing premises between midnight
and 6am on the promotion of the licensing objectives in a specific area, it may introduce an
Early Morning Alcohol Restriction Order (EMRO) if there is sufficient evidence to do so (see
chapter 17). The “cumulative impact” on the promotion of the licensing objectives of a
concentration of licensed premises should only give rise to a relevant representation when
an application for the grant or variation of a licence or certificate is being considered.

16.2 The descriptions of entertainment activities licensable under the 2003 Act are:

* a performance of a play;

 an exhibition of a film;

* an indoor sporting event;

* a boxing or wrestling entertainment;

* a performance of live music;

* any playing of recorded music;

* a performance of dance; and

« entertainment of a similar description to a performance of live music, any playing of
recorded music or a performance of dance.

16.6 As a result of deregulatory changes that have amended the 2003 Act23, no licence is
required for the following activities:

* Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day,
provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

» Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day,
provided that the audience does not exceed 50024.

* Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community premises
between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not exceed 500 and
the organiser (a) gets consent to the screening from a person who is responsible for the
premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides by age classification ratings.

* Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for an event between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, provided that those present do not exceed 1000.

* Boxing or wrestling entertainment: no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or display
of Greco-Roman wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day,
provided that the audience does not exceed 1000.

* Live music: no licence permission is required for:

Page 61



— a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, on any
premises.

— a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises
authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those premises,

provided that the audience does not exceed 50025.

— a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a
workplace26 that does not have a licence, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
— a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church
hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by
a premises licence to sell alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and
(b) the organiser gets consent for the performance from a person who is responsible for the
premises.

— a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-
residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a)
the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance
on the relevant premises from: (i) the local authority concerned, or (ii) the school or (iii) the
health care provider for the hospital

* Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:

— any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises
authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience
does not exceed 500.

— any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall,
village hall, community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a
premises licence to sell alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b)
the organiser gets consent for the performance from a person who is responsible for the
premises.

— any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-
residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a)
the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance
on the relevant premises from: (i) the local authority concerned, or (ii) the school proprietor
or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

* Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day,
with no limit on audience size for:

— any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority where the
entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the local authority;

— any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health care provider where
the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the health care provider;

— any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the entertainment is
provided by or on behalf of the school proprietor; and

— any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling entertainment)

taking place at a travelling circus, provided that (a) it takes place within a moveable structure
that accommodates the audience, and (b) that the travelling circus has not been located on
the same site for more than 28 consecutive days.

Live music
16.26 Live music is licensable:

» where a performance of live music — whether amplified or unamplified — takes place before
08.00 or after 23.00 on any day;

» where a performance of amplified live music does not take place either on relevant
licensed premises, or at a workplace that is not licensed other than for the provision of late
night refreshment;

Page 62



» where a performance of amplified live music takes place at a time when the relevant
licensed premises are not open for the purposes of being used for the sale or supply of
alcohol for consumption on the premises;

» where a performance of amplified live music takes place at relevant licensed premises, or
workplaces, in the presence of an audience of more than 500 people; or

» where a licensing authority intentionally removes the effect of the deregulation provided for
by the 2003 Act when imposing a condition on a premises licence or club premises
certificate as a result of a licence review

16.28 A public performance of live unamplified music that takes place between 08.00 and
23.00 on the same day no longer requires a licence under the 2003 Act in any location. An
exception to this is where a specific condition related to live music is included following a
review of the premises licence or club premises certificate in respect of relevant licensed
premises.

Key terms used in relation to live music

16.30 Under the live music provisions, “music” includes vocal or instrumental music or any
combination of the two. “Live music” is a performance of live music in the presence of an
audience which it is intended to entertain. While a performance of live music can include the
playing of some recorded music, ‘live’ music requires that the performance does not consist
entirely of the playing of recorded music without any additional (substantial and continual)
creative contribution being made. So, for example, a drum machine or backing track being
used to accompany a vocalist or a band would be part of the performance of amplified live
music. The performance of a DJ who is merely playing tracks would not be classified as live
music, but it might if he or she was performing a set which largely consisted of mixing
recorded music in a live performance to create new sounds58. There will inevitably be a
degree of judgement as to whether a performance is live music (or recorded music) and
organisers of events should check with their licensing authority if this consideration is
relevant to whether the activity is authorised by a licence or certificate. In the event of a
dispute about whether a performance is live music or not, it will be for the licensing authority
initially and ultimately, for the courts to decide in the individual circumstances of any case.

16.31 A “workplace” is as defined in regulation 2(1) of the Workplace (Health, Safety and
Welfare) Regulations 1992 and is anywhere that is made available to any person as a place
of work. It is a very wide term which can include outdoor spaces, as well as the means of
entry and exit.

16.32 A “relevant licensed premises” for the purposes of this chapter is one which is
authorised to sell or supply alcohol for consumption on the premises by a premises licence
or club premises certificate.

Recorded music

16.33 No licence is required for recorded music where it takes place on premises which are
authorised by a premises licence or club premises certificate to be used for the supply of
alcohol for consumption on the premises. However, recorded music remains licensable:

« where the playing of recorded music takes places before 08.00 or after 23.00 on any day;
» where the playing of recorded music takes place at a time when the relevant licensed
premises are not open for the purposes of being used for the sale or supply of alcohol for
consumption on the premises;

» where the playing of recorded music takes place at relevant licensed premises in the
presence of an audience of more than 500 people; and

Page 63



» where a licensing authority intentionally removes the effect of the deregulation provided for
by the 2003 Act (as amended).

Indoor Sport
16.35 No licence is required for an indoor sporting event to the extent that certain qualifying
conditions are satisfied. However an indoor sporting event remains licensable:

» where the event takes places before 08.00 or after 23.00 on any day;
» where the event takes place in the presence of more than 1000 spectators.

16.39 Chapter 9 of this Guidance sets out how a licensing authority must determine
applications for a new licence or to vary an existing premises licence. Licence conditions
imposed, in accordance with paragraphs 9.41 to 9.43, for live or recorded music activities
will only apply if the activity meets the criteria of having more than 500 people present,
and/or the activities are taking place between 23.00 and 08.00.

16.40 These conditions will, in effect, be suspended between 08.00 and 23.00 if a
performance of live music or the playing of recorded music takes place before an audience
of 500 people or fewer, but will remain on the face of the licence for when these activities
may take place under other circumstances.

Page 64



	Agenda
	3 APPLICATION FOR A NEW PREMISES LICENCE
	APPENDIX 2 - Premises plan
	APPENDIX 3 - Representation from member of the public - redacted
	APPENDIX 4 - Extract from Licensing Policy
	Appendix 5 - Extracts from 182 guidance - Crookham Street Social Club


